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The Insight solution to a bad situation.

A year ago I had a problem. Brian, one of my
employees, was missing a lot of work. When he
did show up the work he did was sloppy and
often had to be redone. Finally some of the
other employees reported he was drinking on the
job. It was costing us time and money, and the
situation was potentially dangerous—these aren't
toys we're playing with.

didn't want to just give up on the guy, and I
sure didn't want to have to look for somebody
new to hire, so I called our EAP representative.
They recommended Insight.

Turns out, all it took was some teamwork
between the EAP rep, Insight, our company and
Brian, and we were able to turn a bad situation
into something positive.

Today, things are back on track, and Brian is one
of our best employees.

Thanks to Insight we didn't lose him.

Of Addiction Since 1965.

For information call 1-800-356-HELP •Flint Area
Or 1-800-441-5092 •Detroit Area

Alcohol, substance abuse &mental health
programs for individuals and families.

Detoxification •Residential Care •Day Treatment
• Outpatient Services •Halfway House

Conveniently located throughout Michigan.

Commission On Accreditation Of Rehabilitation Facilities (CARE)
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PRESIDENT'S MESSAGE

Moving Along According to Our Plan
by George E Cobbs, Jr., CEAP, EAPA President

Last January, when I published my first
message as EAPA President, I urged
members to set their sights on three

main points for the next two years:

• Becoming unified;
• Working within the agreed-upon budget;
• Focusing on our strategic plan.

IYs my pleasure to tell you that these
points have served us well, and we have
already shown significant progress, even
though we are only one year into our sched-
ule. One of these three topics has received
ample coverage in this issue. You will read
more specific details about the results of
working within our budget in the COO's
Report (page 4), in the Finance Committee
Report (page 5), and in the financial sum-
mary that appears on pages 43-45.

Now I'd like to take a little time to recog-
nize our successes in the other two areas--
working for unification and focusing on our
strategic plan.

New CEAP Credentials

Last year in Boston, after a heartrending
session about what the credentials should be
for becoming a certified employee assistance
professional (CEAP), it appeared highly
unlikely that EAPA members would be able
to come to an agreement on new standards.
But those EAPA leaders who have seen us
pull through other difficulttimes were willing
to forge ahead in search of solutions. Thanks
to goodwill and tenacity, visible in leaders on
all sides of the issue, EAPA now has devel-
oped anew set of requirements that offers
something for everyone.

Let me quickly point out that these new
requirements do not offer everything to
everyone, but they do embody the best of all
options. Most of all, it was obvious that
through our two points—working for unity
within EAPA and focusing on our strategic
plan—we were able to reach an excellent
agreement.

was particularly pleased to see how
members of labor, the EACC, and the EAPA
Board voiced their opinions candidly but
with the utmost respect for the diverse opin-
ions of others in the meeting. In retrospect,
the successful way in which members
worked together during this meeting may

become a model for future negotiations
within EAPA.

The Windy City for EAPA's 25th
Anniversary

Another piece of unfinished businesss
which was being discussed long before we
met in Boston, was the Annual Conference
site for 1996. As we moved into Boston last
year, it appeared that Houston would be the
next site for this annual event. After consid-
erable discussion, however, it became
apparent that we would have difficulties if
we attempted to meet in a city that does not
have union hotels.

Moving quickly—before ,any contract
penalties came into effect a small group
gathered to discuss how we would resolve
the issue. We followed a process and abided
by the decisions that resulted from it.
Chicago was selected as the new location
for the 25th Annual Conference. We could
never have made these decisions without a
full commitment to unity.

Those EAPA chapters that have hosted
previous conferences will tell you that it is a
gargantuan effort, requiring a year or more to
plan all the details that go into making a
memorable event. We all owe the Houston
Chapter a debt of gratitude. As a measure of
their true Texas hospitality and EAPA spirit,
they agreed to abide by our decision and
have been extremely gracious, despite the
grave disappointment they must have felt.
We all owe them a lot.

Now the Northern Illinois Chapter faces
the challenge of hosting one of the most sig-
nificantevents of our Association. They, too,
have been very gracious and have pledged
to make this next annual conference truly
memorable.

To Be or Not To Be Accredited

We plan to meet in Seattle to discuss the
pros and cons of establishing an accredita-
tion program for employee assistance pro-
grams. The Accreditation Forum, scheduled
for Sunday, November 12, from 6:15 p.m. to
7:45 p.m., in the Seattle Convention Center,
will give all EAPA members an opportunity
to voice their opinion about what actions
EAPA should or should not take.
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In the Business Meeting held during the
District I Conference in Baltimore this past
July, many members expressed concern
about moving forward too quickly with an
accreditation program. Working with the
Board since then, I have taken steps to slow
the process down so that we could take our
time, gather more input from members, and
consider the potential effects of our deci-
sions. Once again, I will call on all EAPA
members to remember our plans to work for
unity within the Association and to focus on
our strategic plan. During this discussion,
our plans should include one more point—
to work for what is best for EAP clients.

In the past two years, we have seen story
after story of groups that call themselves
EAPs but do not embrace the core technolo-
gy or any other EAPA standards. We need
some way to distinguish those programs that
are bona fide EAPs, and accreditation is a
process that has worked well for other pro-
fessions.

It is important to note that some EAPs,
may not choose to implement the accredita-
tion process. Regardless of whether a group
chooses to have their EAP accredited, EAPA
needs to consider managing an accredita-
tion process before some other organization
or profession does it for us. Better that the
leaders of the EAP field, and not some other
group, manage the process that determines
what best practices are in an EAP.

Don't Miss the Birthday Party

Please plan to be with us in Chicago from
November 10 to 13 to celebrate EAPA's 25
years of leadership and influence in the EAP
industry. This is an event we have all been
waiting for, and it just won't be the same
without each and every member of the
EAPA family. We are expecting a record
turnout, and we'll have many surprises on
hand. Here's hoping we'll all be together in
Chicago! ~
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FROM THE COO

We've Come a Long Way Together
by Sylvia Straub, Chief Operating Officer

What a year this has been! At the
beginning of the last fiscal
year July 1, 1994—we had a

deficit of $328,000. Since that time, we
have come a long way together. I'm very
pleased to report that the deficit has been
eliminated, and we are showing a small sur-
plus.Our networth, as listed on the balance
sheet on page 44 has increased. If we are
able to maintain our fiscal discipline —and
we've already proven we can do it —the
Association is positioned for further growth.

How have these results —and others
will mention=been accomplished? The
answer can be summed up in one word—
teamwork.

The Board, the chapters, committee
chairs, and other leaders of the Association
have worked together with the staff as a
team. Teams decide upon a direction and
pull together to achieve their goals. ThaYs
exactly what happened.

We all agreed that the deficit had to go,
and the Board passed budgets and adopted
other measures that helped us reach our
goal. Chapters contributed financial and
moral support. Committee chairs devised
.ingenious ways of stretching scarce
resources and produced marvelous results.
The staff sought bids, painstakingly filled
out purchase orders so we could plan
expenses, scrutinized bills for errors, negoti-
ated good prices, and carefully drew up
budgets for their areas and lived within
them. It worked! We can all celebrate this
wonderful achievement!

All the while, the national office staff
was taking on additional activities and
putting new systems in place that will
strengthen the Association. Thanks to the
Finance Department, we are now able to
produce accurate monthly reports. Our
bank accounts have been scrutinized to
determine how to earn more interest on our
-money and reduce service charges. We
have made significant progress in paying

bills in a timely fashion. We have put in

place a system for collecting on past due
invoices. The department is working to cen-
tralize all invoicing. A comprehensive per-
sonnel manual is being developed and will
soon be ready for presentation to the Board.
In short, the department is well organized
and responsive.

The Membership Department is work-
ing on a number of fronts. Mechanisms for
providing reports to chapters are being reor-
ganized so that reports are more accurate,
thorough, and timely. Working with the
Membership Committee, the Membership
Department is designing amember-get-a-
member campaign to be unveiled during
the chapter officers training at the Annual
Conference and is revising the chapter offi-
cers manual. The department will also pro-
vide training to staff on recruiting and
retaining members. The idea is that mem-
bership is everyone's job!

The Certification Department has
worked with the EACC on a number of
fronts this year. Through early and frequent
notification, among other factors, the recer-
tification rate was 50 percent for the spring
period, up from 32 percent the preceding
fall. A quarterly newsletter now provides
regular communication to member and
non-member CEAPs, and department staff
are busy working with various EACC com-
mittees to implement the new requirements,
scheduled to go into effect in 1997. In addi-
tion, department staff are reorganizing and
updating the files of all those holding the
CEAP designation.

The Conference Department managed
three major conferences this past year—
legislative and Public Policy, District I, and
the Boston conference—and regularly works
to make each conference even better than the
last. Planning for the 25th anniversary confer-
ence, which will be in Chicago next year, is
already well underway. A number of new ini-
tiatives are being planned for the 25th
anniversary conference and will be unveiled
over the next several months. Stay tuned!
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The Legislative and Public Policy
Department has initiated a number of valu-
able new products and services for mem-
bers. They include the SAP Roster, the DoT
pilot workshop preceding the Legislative
and Public Policy Conference in March, the
DoT workshop at the Seattle conference, a
DoT training module that was provided free
of charge to each chapter, and DoT packets
#1 and #2. These new products and ser-
vices were spearheaded by this department,
in addition to their already established
responsibilities.

The Communications Department,

EAPA International
Headquarters Staff
Sheree Clayton,

Director of Accounting
Joni Reed Cooley,

Director of Certification
Ruben Durand,

Accounts Payable Manager
Jeff Durkin,

Board Assistant
Guenevere Garrity,

Receptionist
Diane Harp,

Certification Secretary
Ashley Harris,

Resource Center Specialist
Juanita Padgett,

Membership Manager

Sheila Macdonald,
Director of Public Policy
and Legislation

Ruth Maupin,
Accounts Receivable Manager

Ellen Miller,
Director of Conferences

Mary Schmidt,
Director of Membership

Kay Springer,
Director of Communications

Marion Timmons,
Part-Time Certification Assistant



which includes the Resource Center, has
undertaken a number of new initiatives as
well. This unit developed a grant propos-
al for the "In Good Company" training
and a contract proposal to the Center on
Substance Abuse Prevention for printing
the proceedings from the teleconference
on "Critical Incidents and Violence in the
Workplace" that followed the District
conference last summer. In addition,
Resource Center information packets are
continually being updated so that readers
have the most current information avail-
able. Department staff are working to
secure a second class postage permit so
that members may receive the EAPA
Exchange sooner and at no additional
cost to the Association. Finally, the
Department has been working on
increasing media coverage of EAP issues,
developing alliances with other associa-
tions, and negotiating valuable advertis-
ing trades, while increasing advertising
revenue.

The staff has carried out these new ini-
tiatives in addition to ongoing department
responsibilities. Working as a team, they
have gone the extra mile to reduce expens-
es and eliminate the deficit and, at the same
time, have developed new, valuable ser-
vices to members. Like EAPA members,

they believe in employee assistance, EAP
standards, and the goals of EA professionals
within the workplace. Like our volunteer
leadership, they have dedicated themselves
to serving our members, a dedication that
has resulted in hundreds of hours of uncom-
pensated overtime worth tens of thousands
of dollars.

have listed staff names and titles in
the sidebar on page 4. I commend the
staff to you and hope that each EAPA
member attending the conference in
Seattle will approach a staff member and
express appreciation to him or her for
work performance above and beyond the
call of duty.

Finally, I had a delightful visit with
members of the Southern Ohio Chapter
during their annual meeting, which was
held at Deer Creek State Park—a breathtak-
ingly beautiful facility south of Columbus.
Thanks to President Jeff (laden and
Conference Chair Dave Evans and all the
members of the chapter for their wonderful
hospitality. I enjoyed sharing the good news
about our finances and other activities, and
especially appreciated the opportunity to
attend some of the conference sessions,
which were very well done.

Here's hoping I get to meet every one
of you in Seattle!

A Year in Retrospect
From the Finance Committee

year ago, a record number of EAPA
members met in Boston at the 23rd
annual conference. There was

standing room only at the Annual Business
Meeting, and the focus was the financial
state of EAPA. Concern was expressed about
the mounting deficit, which was then more
than $300,000. Members who attended this
meeting demanded the the Board address
the deficit as a primary objective. It was
made clear that if the financial situation did
not improve, the sur-viva) of EAPA was in
jeopardy.

The Board took the situation seriously.
Organizational Effectiveness, which was
Goal #2 in the Strategic Plan, was elevated
to Goal #1. This change allowed the Board
the freedom to make the financial health of
EAPA the priority.

It is now almost a year later. Members
await news of our progress. During the past
year, many levels at EAPA have helped bring
about positive changes. Some of the activi-
ties that took place include:

\_ .0.. ~, 1

. ~ 1,~

• The Board passed a motion not to
approve unbudgeted expenses.

• Many chapters gave generous donations
to EAPA to help reduce the deficit.

• In an effort to help reduce the deficit,
many Board members personally
absorbed ordinarily reimbursed expenses.

• The Finance Committee formed a part-
nershipwith COO Sylvia Straub and
created a deficit reduction plan that was
approved by the Board.

• The EAPA headquarters staff went to
extraordinary lengths to support the
Association in its goals. (See "From the
COO," page 6, for more information.)

The result of the collaborative efforts
between EAPA staff, members, and the
Board is nothing short of remarkable. In less
than one year, we have removed a
$300,000+ deficit and replaced it with a
$100,000 profit. Financial systems and per-
sonnel are now in place to continue moni-

Over 206 EAP's use
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TopDrawer is the most-used software for EAP
record keeping by e~emal, internal, labor and,
government EAPs. It handles all the record
keeping and reporting any EAP from the largest
to the smallest, really ever needs.
Yet,TOpDrawer is the most inexpensive, easy to
learn, easy to use EAP software available.
It provides full-size in-take, case record and
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toring the organization's finances. Attention
is now focusing on rebuilding the reserve
funds to $500,000. Along-term goal is to
build the reserve fund to $1,000,000.
We knew we had the will to change and

now we know we also have the discipline to
change. As we look at the year ahead, we are
reminded of a person who wants to lose
weight. The change in eating habits must be
maintained over a lifetime if long-term success
is to be reached. The discipl ine the Association
has developed must also last a lifetime.
Financial discipline is the key to our future.

During your stay at the 24th Annual
Conference, we encourage you to seek out
EAPA staff, members of the Finance
Committee, and the Board and share with us
your thoughts and ideas about our progress.

Finance Committee members are: Linda
Sturdivant, Chairperson; and EAPA Treasurer,
Miriam Aaron, Robert Challenger, Rennie
Gabriel, Robert Mines, Janet Mug, and
Madeleine Tramm. Rich Bollaert was a
member of the Committee.
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At 25 years young, the EAP Association is facing a critical strategic issue:
Should EAPA offer EA program accreditation? This article provides an

overview of actions to date and describes future possibilities.

by George Grant, Kirk Harlow, Teddy Kemp,
John Maynard, and Debra Reynolds

I. HISTORY AND OVERVIEW

ince 1979, EAPA (known then as
ALMACA) has provided consistent and
continuing leadership in efforts to bring

standardization of practice to a rapidly
expanding profession. EAP standards were
published in 1979. In 1988, these standards
were revised to reflect the language and
focus of what was believed to be a "core
technology" unique to the employee assis-
tance field. Also in 1988, the EAPA Board of
Directors endorsed a definition of an EAP
and began to promote its consistent usage
among practitioners. In 1986, the certifica-
tion of individual practitioners represented
another step toward increased standardiza-
tion of practice.

Despite these early efforts, the boundaries
of our profession remained largely undefined
in day-to-day practice. When asked to define
or describe an EAP, nine times out of ten, the
response will lie within the domain of clini-
cal services. Why? The answer is relatively
simple. In day-to-day practice, our profes-
sion is guided more by the marketplace than
by published standards and definitions.
Whatever sells is conveniently called an
"EAP." The EAP products that sell can range
from stress management to drug testing to

full-risk, capitated carve-out.
Recognizing that program standards and

personal certification alone were not enough
to "correct' these powerful market forces,
the possibility of some sort of program
accreditation was first discussed within the
EAPA Standards Committee as early as 1990.
In fact, in the November, 1990, issue of the
EAPf1 Exchange, Deb Reynolds, CEAP, then
chair of the Standards Committee, outlined a
long- range plan that resulted in the publica-
tion of an accreditation guide.

During this same time, the Florida
Occupational Program Committee (FOPC)
had been working with Don Godwin to
develop a program accreditation process in
Florida. In October,1989, the National
Institute on Drug Abuse awarded FOPC a
contract to field test an EAP accreditation
protocol. On July 19, 1990, Honeywell's
Tampa plant became the nation's first offi-
cially "certified" employee assistance pro-
gram. (A full account of Florida's model was
reported in the Exchange.) EAPA's involve-
ment in the Florida project was twofold.
First, in 1991, a special committee, chaired
by Bob Challenger, CEAP, was formed to
review the FOPC protocol and to evaluate its
usefulness as a national model.

Second, after the 1993 formation of an
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EAPA Accreditation Committee (See Chart 1:
Committee Members), the committee visited
Florida to see firsthand how the. process
worked. The committee participated in
FOPC's site reviewer training program,
which included the actual certification of
two programs. Partial funding for their effort
was provided by the U.S. Department of
Health and Human Services (HHS)
Workplace Initiatives Branch with individual
evaluations submitted to HHS at the comple-
tion of the visit.

With insights gained from this experi-
ence, the Accreditation Committee devel-
oped its mission statement:

"Ensuring quality EAPs through a sys-
tematic accreditation process based on
identifiable values, practices and stan-
dardsacknowledged by the profession."

In 1994, the Accreditation Committee,
in conjunction with the Standards
Committee, published TheSelf-Administered
EAPAssessment Form. As stated in the intro-
duction of this 75-page document, one
objective of the document was to prepare EA
practitioners for the program accreditation
process itself, and it was assumed that this
document would likely become a part of the
self-report portion of an accreditation

X'~ 7- -'



Accreditation
Committee Members
The committee structure was designed
to accommodate the various member
constituencies within EAPA. The com-
mittee members are: John Maynard,
CEAP, Consultant, Colorado; Colleen
Gardner, CEAP, New York (AFL-CIO);
Kirk Harlow, Chair, Research
Committee, Texas; Teddy Kemp,
Consultant, Georgia; John Lobe,
Consultant, Maryland/DC; Kris Brennan,
CEAP, Chair, Small Business
Committee,. Nebraska; Tom Pasco,
CEAP, Blue Cross/Blue Shield, Detroit;
Gary Crites, CEAP, Consultant,
Wisconsin; Roger Wapner, CEAP,
PG&E, California; Dan Lanier, CEAP,
Dupont, Delaware; George Grant,
CEAP, Consultant, Canada; Brenda
Blair, CEAP, Consultant, Texas; Debra
Reynolds, CEAP, Committee Chair,
Continental Airlines; and George Cobbs
(ex-officio). Special recognition is also
given to Susan Swan-Grainger, CEAP,
for her participation; to Jack Erfurt for
his contribution to the Self-Administered
EAP Assessment Form and to Chuck
Rabaut, CEAP, of the Florida
Occupational Program Committee.

process. (See Chart 2: Common Elements of
Accreditation Process).

Over the next six months, the commit-
tee met with a number of accrediting bod-
ies to develop a better idea of issues and
concerns for a national accreditation
process. These groups included the Joint
Commission on Accreditation of Healthcare
Organizations QCAHO), the Council on
Accreditation of Services for Families and
Children, Inc., the National Commission
on Quality Assurance (NCQA), the
Commission on Accreditation of Rehabilita-
tion Facilities (CARE), and American
Accreditation of Programs, Inc. (AAPI). Out
of this process came the creation of a white
paper that outlined issues and concerns.
The white paper was submitted to the EAPA
Board of Directors in 1994.

II. THE ISSUES AND CONCERNS

Recently, EAPA President George
Cobbs, CEAP, requested feedback from the

membership regarding the continued pur-
suit of program accreditation. It was reas-
suring to hear that the issues and concerns
identified by the membership were largely
the same as those identified by the
Accreditation Committee, as reflected in
committee minutes and in the 1994 white
paper. These issues are summarized below
for purposes of continued dissemination of
this information and to stimulate more dia-
logue on this important subject.

Is Accreditation Really Necessary?

To accredit means to acknowledge or
confirm that an entity meets prescrib2d
standards of practice. Accreditation is par-
ticularly important when actual or potential
customers are limited in their own ability to
make this determination.

The proliferation of EA consultants sell-
ing "programs" in the absence of clearly
defined values regarding what is being sold,

combined with an ever-expanding market
for hybrid products, has resulted in the con-
tinued blurring of our professional bound-
aries. In addition, a certain confusion has
developed among existing and potential
customers regarding what is and is not an
EAP. The time has come to distinguish EAPs
from other products in the marketplace. A
program accreditation process could pro-
videthe needed guidance to both seller and
purchaser so that EAPs could co-exist on a
"menu" of products, including prepaid
counseling programs, drug-free workplace
initiatives, health and wellness programs,
etc. The accreditation process could pro-
vide aclear understanding of what products
may complement one another or may, if not
managed, be in conflict with one another.

In addition, if we fail to develop a viable
accreditation process, there is evidence that
government will take responsibility for defin-
ing EA programs and standards. This process
already has begun in several states and is

Common Elements of
The Accreditation Process

Make application
for accreditation

Complete self-study
by completing self-

assessment and submitting
it to Committee

YES

=y Revise and N~ Satisfactor~,r
resubmit self study

NO YES

Schedule 
Take corrective

STOP site visit 
action

NO

Site visit
Site visit satisfactory?
conducted

YES

Accredit Program
STOP for specific period

of time
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present in federal regulations. Lawmakers do
not have the time to become as knowledge-
able about EA issues as we might hope, and
they necessarily respond to political pres-
sures. To avoid ill-conceived or onerous reg-
ulation, we must take control of our own
profession and develop a meaningful
accreditation process.

What Gets Accredited?

The EAPA-sanctioned definition of an
EAP begins with the statement, "An EAP is a
worksite-based program..." Accreditation
must focus on the EAP activities or processes
that make up the "program." As Paul Roman
pointed out in a recent article, all EAPs are
internal in that judgments about their quality
ultimately must be based on the extent to
which the EAP process is embedded in the
workplace. Therefore, accreditation must
focus on the program itself rather than on indi-
vidual practitioners, provider organizations, or
the host employer organization.

The quality of an EAP is a byproduct of the
interaction between the individual practition-
er/provider and the host organization, with
both being influenced by published program
standards.. Therefore, EAPA considers accredi-
tation as a joint effort among the host organi-
zation, the EAP professionals who provide ser-
vices to that organization, and EAPA itself. A
successful accreditation process monitors the
organization of standards, personal certifica-
tion, and guiding principles in actual worksites.

Accreditation would be granted to the
worksite organization and the EA practition-

er/provider organization. The focus of accred-
itation will be program activities that are both
common to all programs/contracts held by
the provider (if applicable) and unique to the
particular worksite seeking accreditation. (See
Chart 3: The Accreditation Structure)

In short, EAPA program accreditation is
the logical extension of the standards devel-
opment process. EAPs become accredited
once they have demonstrated attainment of
EAP standards of practice as described in
Standards, Part Two (possibly through use of
the self-assessment form). The accreditation
process complements the work done by
EAPA's Employee Assistance Certification
Commission which, through the CEAP cre-
dential, has certified more than 9,000 indi-
viduals since 1987.

What Will Accreditation Cost?

Developing a process that is thorough
enough to be meaningful, yet inexpensive
enough to be feasible in all settings is a
challenge requiring much thought and cre-
ativity. EAPs are found in a huge array of set-
tings. We have union-based programs; con-
sortia of small groups and employers; inter-
nal programs based in small, large, and
multi-site companies; external programs
provided by small and large vendors serving
companies of all sizes as well as geograph-
ical dispersion; and hybrid programs.
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We do not yet have the solution for the

cost question. However, the Accreditation

Committee is committed to making the

accreditation process financially feasible for

EA programs of all sizes and in all settings.

We will continue to seek solutions regard-
ing cost by soliciting input from EA practi-
tioners and from people and groups with
significant accreditation experience in other
fields. We will not pursue a process that
does not work financially for all programs.

Should EAPA Be the
Accrediting Body?

There is no question that EAPA must
retain ownership and control of its stan-
dards for Employee Assistance Programs.
The development of the standards was an
exhaustive and inclusive process that result-
ed in a significant move forward in defining
and distinguishing our field.

As we have examined the pros and
cons of developing the accreditation
process internally or seeking the help of an
existing accrediting body, EAPA's retention
of ownership and control of the standards
has remained a bottom line. Given that,
there are a number of significant advan-
tages to EAPA and its members for using an
outside accrediting body.

Existing accrediting groups have the
infrastructure and staff resources to develop

Proposed Joint Venture to Accredit EAR
External Accrediting Body

■

■

Key ~~
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Commission

on
Accreditation
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programs.

•Existing EAPA •
committees with
oversight of
standards and
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Employee Assistance
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~~ Critical Features
• Contractual agreement with

vendor to create joint venture with 80% EAPA
members/20°~ accrediting body members.

• Operating cost of venture is funded by revenues
generated via fees, materials, training.

• Proposed commission will approve selection,
training, and procedural guidelines for site
reviewer/surveyor.

• Ownership of content of EAP standards used in
the accreditation process remains with EAPA.

• Materials/products developed are owned by
vendor, with royalties paid to EAPA.

• EAPA and vendor jointly own data generated by
venture.



and manage an accreditation process; EAPA
does not, nor does EAPA have the money or
expertise to put the needed infrastructure in
place. Using an outside group also protects
EAPAfrom potential liability associated with
accreditation.

Outside groups are able to bring more
credibility and perceived objectivity to the
process because they are independent.
Their process is not likely to be unduly
influenced by internal EAPA politics. On the
other hand, they bring already developed
lobbying connections with federal and state
lawmakers and working relationships with
regulatory agencies.

Our challenge has been to find an
accrediting group that has the experience
and positive reputation we want, but is also
flexible enough to respond to our need to
maintain ownership of the standards and to
help us with such difficult issues as making
the process financially workable for all pro-
grams. Though no final decisions have been
made, CARF has seemed so far to offer the
best match for our needs. We will continue
to explore structural options as we get fur-
ther input from EAPA's membership.

Is There a Market for
Accreditation?

The Accreditation Committee is often
asked if there exists a large enough audi-
ence of internal and external service
providers, host organizations, human
resources personnel and unions who are
prepared to allocate the necessary funds
and energy for accreditation of their EAPs.
To date, more than 300 copies of the Self-
Administered EAP Assessment Form have
been purchased, at $60.00 each. Thirty-five
organizations in the United States, Canada,
South America, and Europe have contacted
EAPA about initiating the accreditation
process.

Already, the market has seen value in
the proposed accreditation process and in
the self-assessment guide. However, EAPA
views the accreditation process as a key
issue that defines our profession for both
EAPA members and the consumers and
organizations who use EAP services.

While we are fortunate that the accred-
itation process is a generator of some rev-
enue, this process is not a marketing issue;
it is a professional issue of extreme impor-
tance to both EAPA and the EAP field.

Will the Accreditation Process
Work for Everyone?

It should, and the Accreditation
Committee and the EAPA Board is commit-

~ ~' ~`~ ~'
1~

ted to addressing the accreditation needs and
concerns raised by small and large internal or
external providers of EAP services, as well as
issues raised by employers, unions, and oth-
ers EAP consumers. We are determined to
ensure that this process is fair and equitable
for EA providers and their consumers.

How Will EAPA and Its Members
Benefit from an Accreditation
Process?

1. EAPA Standards, first published in 1979
and later refined in 1988 and 1992, will
be put into operation by an accreditation
process.

2. An accreditation process provides the
basis for consistent legislative action in
the United States and Canada.

3. The accreditation process encourages
and legitimizes sound EAP practices
between internal and external service
providers and the sponsoring host orga-
nizations.

4. EAP consumers (individual employees
and family members, host organization)
who use accredited EAPs will enjoy a
higher level of consumer protection.

5. An EAPA-sponsored accreditation
process remains under our control.

EAPA may then impact any regulatory
process imposed by state, provincial,
and/or federal government.

6. The accreditation process supports two
key EAPA objectives:

(a) Confirms EAPA's continuing role as
the innovative .leading professional
Association in the EAP field. (b)Promotes
to consumers that both CEAPs and
accredited EAPs are the key quality indi-
cators as EAPs enter the next century.

Where Do We Go from Here?

The Accreditation Committee has pro-

posed that EAPA enter into a joint venture
with an external accreditation organization
to accredit employee assistance programs.

Chart 4 summarizes the essential features of

this proposal.
To gather additional input and conduct

dialogue on the issues presented here, a

forum will be held from 6:15 to 7:45 p.m.,
Sunday, November 12, during the Annual

Conference in Seattle. In addition, Accredi-

tation Committee members have agreed to
work with regional representatives on a
strategy for stimulating participation on a
regional basis. i~
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This article from a national association editor
offers good advice to EAP counselors.

by Richard Fields, Ph. D.

he term dual disorders refers to the
condition of having both a psychi-
atric diagnosis and a chemical

dependency diagnosis. In the past, coun-
selors in the mental health and chemical
dependency fields have taken a somewhat
provincial outlook. Each has accused the
other of minimizing the importance of his
or her own perspective. In many ways, the
situation has become like the story of the
blind men who are asked to describe an
elephant. Each described it according to
the body part he could touch but without
regard to the remaining, unseen portions
of the beast.

Within the last five to ten years, coun-
selors in the chemical dependency field
have been recognizing that more of their
patients have underlying psychiatric prob-
lems/disorders. Many of these patients
find it quite difficult to maintain sobriety
because oftheir co-existing psychiatric ill-
ness. Despite active involvement in treat-
ment, aftercare, and self-help, these
patients continue to experience feelings of
depression and anxiety. They also have
personality issues and interpersonal con-
flicts that make them at-risk for drug/alco-
hol relapse.

At the same time, counselors in the
mental health field are recognizing that
alcohol/drug problems complicate man-
agement of •psychiatric disorders. They
are finding that it is not enough to provide
psychological treatment (counseling and
psychotherapy) and biological treatment
(medications) without first understanding
what role a patients drug/alcohol use
may play in aggravating psychological
symptoms.

Managed care, with its mission of
cost containment, is challenged to address
patient-treatment matching with the dual
disorder patient. Dual disorder patients
often require more in-depth assessment at
various stages of recovery and more inten-

sive treatment resources. Denial of either
the psychological problems or alcohol/
drug problems of a patient often results in
problems in treatment stabilization and
relapse.

The Epidemiologic Catchment Area
(ECA) Study (Regier, et al., 1990) surveyed
20,091 people and found that 53 percent
of drug abusers and 39 percent of alcohol
abusers have at least one mental illness,
and 29 percent of the mentally ill in the
survey abuse either alcohol or drugs.
Whatever your own estimate of the extent
of dual disorders, there is no denying its
existence and prevalence.

The philosopher Mencken once
wrote, "The solution to a problem that is
simple is usually wrong." It would be nice
if we could say universally that
addicts/alcoholics will have their depres-
sion symptoms and personality issues sub-
side within six months of abstinence and
recovery from drugs/alcohol. However,
we frequently become more aware of
underlying affective and personality disor-
ders at this stage of drug/alcohol recovery.

The picture is even further confound-
ed by the increase in marital and partner
conflicts and the consequences of addic-
tion (for example, financial troubles and
legal problems, etc.) It is no wonder that
the drug/alcohol relapse rate is high after
45-120 days of sobriety. The newly recov-
ering person is confronted with the reality
of trying to continue in recovery while
dealing with significant emotional, physi-
cal, and spiritual conflicts.

Estimates by the Department of
Health and Human Services indicate that
more than 10 million people suffer from
depressive illness and 2 million suffer
from bipolar disorder. Despite the fact that
a majority of those individuals suffering
from depression can be helped (more than
90 percent), only one in three seeks help.

Many individuals deny they have
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depression and personality disorders
because of feelings of shame. They may
view themselves as weak and inferior
(shaming messages) in not having the
willpower to overcome depressive feel-
ings and negative personality traits. This is
much like the denial of the disease of
alcoholism and drug addiction.

In fact, depression is a disease, much
like drug/alcohol addiction in that it has a
known etiology, gets progressively worse
over time, and has significant negative
consequences if untreated. This shame
and denial create problems in assessment
and treatment matching, as patients will
discount and under-report depressive
symptoms and personality issues. due to
patient denial and shame.

Certainly everyone experiences
symptoms of depression from time to time,
especially at early stages of recovery from
drugs/alcohol. Unfortunately, if depres-
sion is not treated early and it is present
long enough, it locks in and takes on a life
of its own. This is another way of saying
the brain changes physiologically in
response to internal or external events that
have persisted for a sufficient time.

In describing an individual's person-
ality, we may think of traits that describe
an individual's way of behaving, experi-
encing life, and interaction in interperson-
al relationships. Most personality traits
have both adaptive and maladaptive qual-
ities or features.

For example, being very logical and
organized may have adaptive value in cer-
tain occupations but may limit one's
capacity to be experiential and emotional-
ly expressive, especially in interpersonal
relationships. Likewise, a highly creative,
artistic, and emotional individual might
not be ideally suited to a situation or
occupation requiring logical, politically
sensitive, and decisive action. We all have
a mix of various personality traits that

._ ... 
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define us as individuals. When personali-
ty traits are persistently maladaptive and
lead to chronic difficulty in interpersonal,
occupational, and social functioning,
there is a personality disorder.

Borderline, antisocial, and narcissis-
tic personality disorders are the ones most
identified in addicts/alcoholics. The
denial of personality traits by the patient
creates a treatment conflict and problems
in engaging the patient into treatment. The
borderline, antisocial, and narcissistic per-
sonality is convinced that your assessment
and treatment recommendations are inac-
curate. The highly defended, bright, and
manipulative patients may even have the
clinician convinced that someone made a
mistake in the assessment scoring. This
creates a challenge in engaging these dif-
ficultdual disorder patients into treatment.

For the narcissist, the defense is per-
fection. They believe if they look good all
the time, they will avoid shame. They need
people to affirm them and fill them up to
cover up their inherent self-doubt and feel-
ings of inadequacy. For the schizophrenic,
personal safety is the issue. In order to
avoid shame and feel safe, interpersonal
distance is the defensive posture, making it
hard for the therapist to get close. The bor-
derline has a variety of defensive postures,
including dependent behavior, distancing,
and acting out. The antisocial personality
will tell you the system is all wrong; rules
don't apply to them.

The skills of the therapist in dealing
with the personality disordered patients
who also have drug alcohol problems
may be more important than the treatment
modality. The therapist must have training
and experience in both drug/alcohol
recovery and personality disorders. The
most important characteristic of a good,
therapeutic relationship is the connection
between therapist and patient. Good
boundaries help maintain that healthy
connection. The following four basic cat-
egories of patients illustrate the impor-
tance of boundaries.

The Dependent Clinger

These are often dependent patients
who need your full attention. They often
see the therapist as inexhaustible and
superhuman. They will frequently tell the
therapist how special and wonderful they
are. "You are so much more insightful,
more available, and understanding than
my last therapist. My last therapist didn't
understand me like you do."

The guidelines for working with these
types of patients are:

• Accept your time boundaries. This is
not the only patient you have and you
do have a personal life outside of the
office.

• Acknowledge limits in your knowl-
edge. Let the patient Know that you can
provide the best service within the lim-
its of your Knowledge.

• Accept limits to your stamina. You are
not superhuman.

• Acknowledge the limits of your thera-
peutic relationship. You are not this
patients friend, parent, or partner.
Avoid personal self-disclosures, which
this patient could use against you later.

• Avoid promises that can't be kept acid
avoid supporting illusions that will be
shattered. This usually occurs when
patients asl< for favors at the close of the
session, or neglect to advise you in a
timely way about paperwork they want
you to complete.

• Define what you consider emergencies.
Avoid responding toquasi-emergencies
and urgent messages. Let the patient
develop his or her own capabilities by
not coming to the rescue.

The Demanders

The demanders are usually men who
devalue the therapist. They have deep
dependency needs, which are covered up
with many layered defenses. A frontal
attack of these defenses will often fail.

The guidelines for working with these
types of patients are:

Support their entitlement but direct
them to the needed treatment. (For
example, "You deserve the best treat-
ment possible. Maybe there is another
therapist/program that can better meet
your needs, and this is what we can
provide.")

Avoid tireless debates that can escalate.
Don't argue whether the person is an
addict/alcoholic, but instead give him
or her the definition of addiction (obses-
sive-compulsive, inability to stop, con-
tinued use despite negative conse-
quences) and let the patient decide if
the description fits his or her life.

• Repeat the theme of acceptance. There
is not going to be a therapeutic insight
when someone is angry or upset.

• Fight the tendency to want to abandon
and reject these patients. Accept that it
is difficult for them to let down their
defenses.

The Manipulative Help-Rejecters

These patients sabotage most efforts to
help them and are professional victims.
They will tell you that nothing you suggest
works. You often spend your time putting
out fires or providing "band-aid" treatment.

The guidelines for working with these
types of patients are:

Use gentle, simple reasoning rather
than complicated explanations. If you
give the patient a therapeutic road map
that is difficult, he or she will get lost.
The patient may translate literally what
you say and will be afraid of the
responsibility of being successful.
Explain that progress is slow. Use the
Alcoholics Anonymous proverb of
"progress, not perfection." These
patients often say, "I have been work-
ing with you for a long time and noth-
ing is getting better." Clarify that
progress is slow and highlight their
accomplishments.

The Self-Destructive Deniers

These are the patients who continue
negative/destructive behavior (for exam-
ple, drugging, drinking) despite significant
negative consequences. They are the
patients who, if you hang in there with
them and don't abandon them, may one
day decide to get better.

The guidelines for working with these
types of patients are:

Exercise patience. There will be oppor-
tunities to "raise their bottoms."
Fight your impulses to abandon them.
You can be available while setting
appropriate boundaries (for example, "I
will not take the repeated phone calls
in the middle of the night when you are
drinking. Here's the number of the hos-
pital for detoxification or if you feel you
are losing it."
Metaphorically speaking, don't run in
the traffic with these patients. Don't put
yourself in physical danger.

References for this article are available
from the author.

Richard Fields, Ph. D., who was formerly
assistant director of the Western Regional
Training Center for the National Institute
of Drug Abuse (NIDA), has a private coun-
seling practice in Bellevue, Washington.
He is author of "Drugs in Perspective," a
college textbook, and is editor of
Professional Counselor magazine. C~
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s employee assistance professionals
(EAPs) and substance abuse profes-
sionals (SAPs), we face many issues

that impact members of the workplace and
their families. We are all familiar with prob-
lems concerning violence and substance
abuse. However, I think many times we miss
the boat when it comes to addressing post-
traumatic stress disorder (PTSD) among the
work force. This is especially the case
among employed Vietnam veterans.

Approximately 2.8 million Americans
served during the 10 years the Vietnam War
lasted. Most of these men and women are
now employed. When compared with the
various subgroups in the labor force, the
number of Vietnam veterans is small.

While all Vietnam veterans do not neces-
sarily have PTSD or substance abuse prob-
lems, I do think that those individuals who
served in Vietnam during the war have
unique concerns and issues that EA profes-
sionals must be aware of in order to address
them appropriately. The goal of this article is
to help EA professionals understand the
needs of those Vietnam veterans who may
seek out our services.

by Larry Ashley, Ed. S., CSVI/, CAC

Evolution of Combat-Related PTSD

It was not until 1980 that PTSD
became a diagnostic category of the
American Psychiatric Association and was
included in the Diagnostic and Statistical
Manual of Mental Disorders, Third Edition
(DSM-lll). As long as there have been
wars, however, the soldiers who have
fought them have experienced disturbing
reactions. At times, these negative reac-
tions did not occur until many years after
the war was over.

During World War I, a soldier's nega-
tive reaction was called shell shock. It was
thought that the pressure from exploding
shells caused psychological damage. In
World War II, combat fatigue came into
existence followed by the traumatic neu-
rosis of the Korean War. The experience of
the Vietnam War then led to recognition
of PTSD in the 1980 DSM-lll.

This impact of combat stress may not
occur until much later. It may be several
years before a reaction occurs. This is the
case with most veterans with PTSD, espe-
cially those who also have substance
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abuse problems. It has been my experi-
ence in working with employed Vietnam
veterans that they have been and still are
very good at numbing out pain by the use
of drugs and alcohol.

Comparison between Vietnam and
Other Wars.

Many people believe that all wars are
the same. There is little doubt that all wars
can be traumatic to those who fight them.
However, every war has its unique char-
acteristics. Nowhere is this more evident
than with the Vietnam War.

The Vietnam War was fought by the
very young. The average soldier was 19
years old. On the other hand, the World
War II soldier had an average age of 26
years, and the average soldier in the
Korean War was 24 years old. Because of
this age difference—between 19 and 26
years—the Vietnam soldier was probably
lacking years of emotional and psychosex-
ual development. While exposure to trau-
ma at any age can be disturbing, a person
is especially vulnerable during the early
adult years when one's concept of values



and spirituality are being formulated.
In previous wars, as a rule, soldiers

departed and returned as members of mil-
itary units. With the exception of the ini-
tial units sent to Vietnam, the troops went
and returned as individuals. This differ-
ence may not appear to be of any conse-
quence, but it is critical to the soldier's
processing of the war events. Relating
fears and other experiences with com-
rades can be a significant healing occur-
rence. The Vietnam veterans could be in
combat one day and within one or two

Symptoms of Post-
~raumatic Stress
Disorder (PTSD)
Depression:
Sleep disturbances
Feelings of worthlessness
Difficulty in concentrating

Isolation:
Few friends
Mistrust

Rage:
Can be frightening to selves
and others

Avoidance of feelings - alienation:
Inability to experience joy.

Survival guilt:

Anxiety Reactions:
Heightened senses
Fear of crowds

Sleep disturbances and nightmares:
Avoid sleep

Intrusive thoughts:
Flashbacks from sights, sounds
and smells

days later be back in America, discharged
from the military. This lighting-fast trans-
formation reinforced the veteran's tenden-
cy not to share feelings and experiences.

Other unique aspects included swift
evacuation from the battlefield, which
resulted in uncertainty about the fate of
friends; the widespread availability of
drugs; unprecedented killing of noncom-
batants; and the one-year tour of duty.

Symptomatology of PTSD

According to the National Vietnam
Veterans Readjustment (NVVRS) Study

\ 
,.

THE DEATH OF A SOUL

Did you know I died in Vietnam?

It was not a bloody death. Only the death of my soul.

It was the 'essence of I ife' that gave wholeness.

The link with God and the universe.

The inner substance that provides security.

Especially in those desperate hours.

It was the Spiritual Self that died.

K.I.A. 1968!

There was no blood, no tangible evidence, no medal,

no letter home announcing the deceased.

No prayers and no tears were shed.

Nor has any wall been erected; nor a memorial been built.

Nothing!

Only a sense of violation. An emptiness, a change, an inner

void.

An ever-present sense of loss.

The kind of loss you feel when you lose a loved one

A heartache that lingers forever with you.

You are left struggling without your spirituality or

wholeness.

Only an agony remains!

Darwin D. Savage - 101 sf. Airborne

(1988) conducted by the Research
Triangle Institute, most Vietnam veterans
do not have PTSD. The NVVRS reported
that of the 2.8 million who served in
Vietnam during the war, 480,000 have
full-blown PTSD and 350,000 have partial
PTSD. Accordingly, almost 30 percent of
Vietnam veterans have some form of
PTSD. But even those veterans who are not
in this category have experienced some of
the following PTSD-related symptoms.
(Only the most common symptoms associ-

ated with PTSD are listed here; this list was
not meant to be all encompassing.)

Depression. Depression is the most
common symptom among Vietnam veter-
ans. Depression can take the form of sleep
disturbances, feelings of worthlessness,
and difficulty in concentrating.

Isolation. Many Vietnam veterans
have few close friends. They tend to avoid
others and mistrust those in authority. This
isolation may be increased by how others
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view them. Some civilians view what a
soldier does in war a horrible crime.

Rage. Rage and anger are common
among veterans, who do not always know
themselves why they are angry. Rage can
be as frightening to the veterans them-
selves as to others, but rage may not often
be obvious to others.

Avoidance of Feelings. Numbing the
pain, a technique that was learned in
Vietnam as a survival skill, is still intact
with many veterans. Events such as deaths
of significant others often do not produce
feelings. They may not experience joy as
well.

Guilt. Much has been written about
survival guilt. While survival guilt does
occur, it is not the only type of guilt expe-
rienced. Many veterans express gui It at the
euphoric and destructive qualities that can
occur in a war setting.

Anxiety Reactions. It is rare to
encounter a Vietnam veteran who does
not exhibit heightened senses, such as
hearing and smell, that can be traced to
the war. These heightened senses cause
many veterans to avoid crowds and peo-
ple in general and lead to greater isola-
tion.

Sleep Disturbances. To many veter-
ans, sleep is viewed as an enemy because
it is often associated with traumatic night-
mares. One way to avoid sleep is by using
drugs and alcohol.

Re-experiencing the Event. Flash-
backs can occur in which the veterans re-
experience actual war-related events. To
experience a flashback is a traumatic
experience in itself.

PTSD and Substance Abuse

The NVVRS indicates that 22.2% of
male Vietnam veterans with a current
PTSD diagnosis suffer from alcohol abuse
and dependence. Only 9.2% of the non-
PTSD male veterans have the same diag-
nosis. When alcohol is factored out, 6.1
of Vietnam veterans with PTSD suffer
from drug abuse and dependence. This
contrasts with 1 % of male veterans with-
out PTSD.

Working with veterans who have PTSD
and substance abuse issues is extremely
challenging and requires knowledge and
experience not only of each diagnosis but
also of how they interact and impact each
other.
Treatment Issues and Approaches

Many veterans started using and abus-

ing drugs and alcohol as a way of dealing
with and tolerating the stress of combat,
fear of death, and other experiences asso-
ciated with war. Drugs and alcohol were
easy to obtain and viewed as an appropri-
ate way of coping. While the use of alco-
hol and drugs may have aided initially in
coping with the war experience, contin-
ued use may have interfered with address-
ing combat-related feelings and may have
impacted PTSD. Drug use and lifestyle
appear to help continue PTSD symptoms.
In addition, PTSD symptoms, such as irri-
tability, anger, and mood swings, may
contribute to relapse.

The EA professional

should try to

find out how the

veteran views

death. This view

plays an important

role both directly

and indirectly in

the destructive

behaviors of PTSD

and substance

abuse.

Like many victims of traumatic events,
combat survivors often have turned to
drugs and alcohol as a means of self-med-
icating their grief. When the use of alco-
hol and/or other drugs is stripped away
without having an appropriate alternative
in place, the trauma can be magnified.
Relapse prevention, particularly a pro-
gram the veteran can relate to, is especial-
ly important in this population in the early
stages of treatment. With many veterans,
there is a greater fear of the combat trau-
ma than of the negative consequences of
substance abuse; hence, the veteran
relapses.

Because both PTSD and substance
abuse exhibit similar symptoms (that is,
depression, suicidal tendencies, sleep dis-
turbances, judgment impairment, etc.),
working with veterans who have both
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problems can be difficult. It is not until the
veteran is substance-free that a more
accurate assessment can be made of
causal factors.

In addition to addressing the sypmto-
motology of PTSD and substance abuse,
the EA professional should try to find out
how the veteran views death. Death plays
an important role both directly and indi-
rectly inthe destructive behaviors of PTSD
and substance abuse. How one views
death tells you how life is viewed. With
some veterans death is the friend, life the
enemy. Near-death experiences can have
a lasting impact. Loss of fear of death can
cause one to take chances and risks that
one would not otherwise take.

When looking at .referral sources for
Vietnam veterans, it is important to assess
the issue of trust because many veterans
mistrust the government and will not go to
any programs connected with the
Department of Veterans Affairs (VA). The
VA offers both inpatient and outpatient
programming for PTSD and substance
abuse. The VA's Readjustment Counseling
Services has more than 200 Vet Centers
throughout the country that offer commu-
nity-based services. Substance abuse
treatment programs generally do not offer
PTSD programming. There are, of course,
individual clinicians who specialize in
PTS D.

Joel Osler Brende, M.D., has written an
excellent 12-step recovery workbook enti-
tled Coping with the Aftermath of Vietnam
(1993) for Vietnam Veterans of America,
Inc. I highly recommend it.

There are also 12-step veterans meet-
ings, but not many focus on PTSD issues.
Some War Veterans Anonymous (WVA)
meetings that focus on PTSD issues such
as victimization are being formed around
the country. I have used the 12-steps of
WVA in individual and group work as
clinical themes with positive results.

Implications for Employee
Assistance and Substance Abuse ~
Professionals

Whether EAPs and SAPS know it or not,
they all have, at some time, worked with
Vietnam veterans. It is not uncommon for
such individuals to fail to identify them-
selves as Vietnam veterans. Most of the
veterans who served in Vietnam are
employed and are presenting themselves
through EAPs.

Much has been made of those Vietnam
veterans with a history of self-destructive
behavior. There is another group of veter-
ans starting to evidence themselves with



How EA Professionals
Can Help Vietnam Vets
• Place information about services

for Vietnam veterans in company
and employee newsletters and
other publications.

• Train EAP staff in assessing and
referring Vietnam veterans.

• Develop a veterans' committee
and help them acquire contact
and referral sources.

increasing frequency. These are the veter-
ans who returned from the war and imme-
diately entered the work force. Among
them are the "f~mctional PTSD'ers." They
kept their PTSD issues under control as
long as they were employed. With the loss
of a job, however, the issues associated
with the Vietnam War began to surface.
Some of these veterans do not even know
that their concerns may be combat-relat-
ed. This is a population to which all pro-
fessionals should be sensitive, especially
EA professionals. Retirees and displaced
workers-need to have access to appropri-
ate services.

The Threat of Violence

The issue of violence in the workplace
is on everyone's mind. All employees
need to have procedures in place to com-
bat violence. Vietnam veterans often
respond to violence and threats in differ-
ent ways than the average worker. When
Vietnam veterans feel threatened, the sur-
vival skills learned in war may be recalled
without their realizing it. This may include
meeting violence with violence. Veterans
with significant PTSD issues who have
been employed since their return from
Vietnam often have not had help address-
ing these issues; therefore, there is the
potential for violence.

Family members of Vietnam veterans
are often seen by EAPs and SAPS.
Knowing that a troubled employee's par-
ent or spouse is a veteran may have an
impact on treatment approach or referral.
It has been estimated by the NVVRS that
70 percent of Vietnam veterans have been
divorced once and 35 percent, two or
more times. Oftentimes, spouses feel that
all will be well if they are more under-
standing and the veteran receives treat-
ment. As we Know, dysfunctional families
do not get better when one family mem-
bergets treated. PTSD is a family problem,
just as substance abuse is.

OuY focus on interpersonal
dynamics and our what to do

EDMOND OTIS training emphasis is unique and
AND goes to the heart of protectingASSOCIATES

P''°f~s~t°nul uncl the workplace.
Personal

Communtcutton

1-800-300-1309
CONSULTING • WORKSHOPS AND SEMINARS • TRAINING

To other EAPs and SAPS working with
Vietnam veterans, I offer this advice: Do
not wait until you find a veteran who needs
the types of services described in this arti-
cle Seek them out now. PTSD and sub-
stance abuse are complex and difficult
problems. Through competent and profes-
sional help, Vietnam veterans with this dual
diagnosis can become productive again
and we can finally welcome them home.

References for this article are available
from the author

Larry Ashley, Ed.S, CAC, CSW, is clin-
ical director of Boniface Human Services
of Lincoln Park, Mid~ig=an. He has been
involved in the substance abuse field for
over 20 years as a college instructor•,
researcher, and therapist and has exten-
sive experience working with Vietnam
veterans and HIV Disease/AIDS issues rel-
ative to substance abuse. In October
1994, he was part of an American team
studying Post-Traumatic Stress Disorder
(PTSD) among Vietnamese Veterans in
Vietnam. He can be reached at eoniface
Human Services, 25050 Outer Drive,
Suite 201 Lincoln Park, MI 48146; 373-
928-8940; (fax) 313-928-5152. ►~
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by Victor Werner, MS, LPC, and Jimmie blooding, MS, CEAP

'n the last decade, there has been a
marked shift in how the mental health
system delivers treatment. This paradigm

shift has occurred for three basic reasons:

1) managed care has focused the bulk of
attention on certain behavioral outcomes
and measurements, not on how treatment is
performed;
2) research has indicated that in many
cases, briefer treatments are just as effective
as longer courses of treatment (Koss &
Butcher, 1986; Talmon, 1990; Sharfstein et
al, 1986); and
3) a more educated consumer has demand-
ed briefer treatment.

In the substance abuse treatment field,
we have held up aone-size-fits-all treat-
ment model as being the most effective.
When this treatment did not work, it was
assumed that the client was resistant, in
denial, or just hadn't hit rock bottom.
Clients have even been denied treatment or
have been told to go home and come back
when they've gotten worse. The success or
failure of treatment was measured in all or
nothing terms, with abstinence being the
only measure of successful treatment.

This model required little matching of
client's problems with optimal treatment.
Abstinence was the only acceptable treat-
mentgoal and the client could either accept
it or be considered resistant. Addicts and
alcoholics were seen as characteristically
dishonest and, therefore, incapable of mak-

ing effective decisions in their own treat-
ment. But, some research has indicated that
client involvement in the selection of treat-
ment goals is more likely to result in suc-
cessful treatment outcomes (Sanchez-Craig,
1990; Miller &Hester, 1986).

At the Behavioral F-lealth Center in
Arkansas, we have developed a program
based on a continuum of care. Treatment
goals range from abstinence to moderation.
We believe that abstinence is always the
healthiest and safest choice, but we under-
stand and accept a clients option to choose
moderation as his or her original goal. It is
interesting to note that Bill W., one of the
co-founders of AA, respected the individ-
ual's right to choose this option (modera-
tion) at first (see Alcoholics Anonymous
—The Big Book, p.31-32). We have found
that there are as many paths to recovery as
there are people who drink or use other
drugs. Successful treatment is often a direct
outcome of therapist attitude.

To effectively involve clients in treat-
ment selection, an attitudinal shift in the
professional must take place. A belief that
clients are autonomous, self-directed, and
capable of self-control, regardless of their
level of alcohol dependence, is necessary to
successful outcomes (Sanchez-Craig, 1990).
With this attitude of respect and empower-
mentfor the client, the professional is ready
to begin the assessment.

The assessment and treatment
approach used by the Behavioral Health

18 EAPA EXCHANGE NOVEMBER/DECEMBER 1995

Center is grounded in research on process-
es of natural recovery as set forth by
Prochaska and Diclemente (1982, 1984,
1985, 1986). While the scope of this article
cannot cover a lengthy elaboration of each
stage, the six stages are as follows:

1. Pre-contemplation-not considering
change;

2. Contemplation-consider that they have
a problem and consider the feasibility
and costs of changing behaviors;

3. Determination-a decision to take action
is made;

4. Action-efforts to modify behavior;
5. Maintenance-sustained change; and,
6. If the sustained change fails, a Relapse

occurs and the cycle begins.

At times, in the Maintenance stage a
person no longer has a temptation to
indulge in that behavior and they exit the
cycle for that particular problem. Some peo-
ple choose to remain in the Maintenance
stage for life.

The process begins with a brief screen,
such as the CAGE or DRINC. If there is no
evidence of a problem with drinking or
other drugs, there is no need for further ses-
sions. This approach assumes that clients
are about as honest as the average person
who consults with any professional. If the
screening indicates there may be a problem
with alcohol or other drugs, the counselor
recommends a thorough assessment, which
becomes the foundation on which to build.



The assessment collects the clients
own information; the client will use that
information to decide what, if anything, he
or she wants to do about this problem.
Information collected includes: usage histo-
ry, behavior surrounding usage (before and
after), problems caused by usage, benefits of
usage, family history of use, physical lab
tests (that is, liver functioning), and a certain
neuropsychological test known to measure
the effects of alcohol. We know that heavy
alcohol and/or drug use can cause serious
cognitive and neurological impairment.
Neuropsychological assessment can be an
effective, early indicator of alcohol-related
impairment. Standardized assessment tools
such as Healstead-Reitan's Trail-making
(Section B); Block Design, Digit Symbol
(WAIS-R) are recommended.

Clients are referred for lab tests for
blood and serum chemistry profiles as well
as screening for elevations on liver and
high-density lipoproteins (HDL). Blood
pressure should also be screened since
heavy drinking contributes to hypertension.
In the event any abnormal findings are dis-
covered, the EA professional will refer the
client to a physician. Other risk factors,
including family history, age of onset, and
level of intoxication can, when presented as
normative data, be illuminating.

At the end of the first assessment ses-
sion, the EA professional gives the client the
pamphlet Alcohol and You (by Dr. William
Miller) describing some of the risks associ-
ated with heavy drinking. It is objective,
well written, and has no scare tactics found
in some other publications.

Because motivation is a primary com-
ponent of a clients readiness to change, a
technique called motivational interviewing
(Miller & Rollnick, 1991) is used in the
assessment. Dr. William Miller developed
motivational interviewing, which resembles
many of the respectful, nonpathologizing,
brief therapy models in use by many practi-
tioners. This model views people as capable
of making good decisions, healthy as
opposed to pathological, and always
changing. The strategy operates on the
assumption that there are certain critical
elements that help motivate change. These
elements are summarized by the acronym
FRAMES:

• Feedback of personal risk or impairment
• Emphasis on personal Responsibility for

change
• Clear Advice to change
• A Menu of alternative change options
• Therapist Empathy
• Facilitation of client Self-Efficacy or opti-

mism

The goal of the comprehensive assess-
ment with motivational interviewing is to
collect as much information as possible
about the clients relationship with alcohol
or drugs. The information is collected in a
nonconfrontational, nonjudgmental man-
ner to be compiled, printed, and presented
to the client in the motivational feedback
session.

The clinician then assembles the infor-
mation in the clinical feedback report. The
report is completed in duplicate with the
client receiving one report to take home for
review and the clinician retaining one

As clients formulate
their own treatment
plan, they can take
credit for their own
success. We have
found that clients
who are involved in
setting their own goals
will be much more
committed to those
goals than if the goals
were set for them.

report for the client file. The EA profession-
al presents the information in the clinical
feedback report to the client about two
weeks after the initial assessment session
during a motivational feedback session.

The EA professional is careful to present
the information to the client in a noncon-
frontational manner. For the alcohol users,
their use amounts are presented in compari-
son with national norms. For example:

Counselor: According to this information,
97% of the population drinks less than you do.

The information is straightforward and
may also include information on liver func-
tioning, cholesterol levels, and blood pres-
sure. It is always presented in a respectful
manner without any preconceived ideas
about what the client should do with the
information.

Between each piece of information, it
is important to give the client time to
respond. If the client does not readily have

a reaction, we use statements such as:

• What do you make of this?
• Does this make sense to you?
• Does this surprise you?

The purpose here is to elicit responses,
not confront the client. It is important to the
treatment that the client make his or her
own inferences about the information while
deciding what to do with the information.
The more options presented, the more like-
ly the client will be to commit to his or her
own choice of options.

The client typically hears a wide range
of treatment options ranging from advice to
inpatient status with varying levels of inten-
sity. As clients formulate their own treat-
ment plan, they can take credit for their
own success. We have found that clients
who are involved in setting their own goals
will be much more committed to those
goals than if the goals were set for them.

For the clinician using motivational
interviewing, the crucial stages from
Prochaska and Diclemente's model con-
templation and determination. One of the
purposes of the comprehensive assessment
and subsequent motivational feedback ses-
sion is to motivate the client to the action
stage. If the client is only in the precon-
templation stage, the EA professional gives
the information and arranges fora follow-
up visit in a month. If the client does not
call for an appointment, part of motiva-
tional interviewing is to call the client to
see how things are going. When the client
decides what he or she wants to do, we
then move to the next stage on the deci-
sion tree.

If the client decides to make a change,
the job of the clinician is to match the client
to the optimal treatment program for his or
her goals. In spite of all available evidence,
a client may choose moderation when
abstinence is the better and healthier
choice. The clinician is careful not to
impose his or her values on the client but
suggests that certainly abstinence is the
healthier choice.

When it is factually clear that the client
is at high risk but continues to drinWdrug
(that is, legal, health, relationship risks) and
still insists on moderation as a goal, the clin-
ician's task is to advise the client of the dan-
ger of this choice. Another strategy is to
advise the client that experience indicates
that people with this high-risk profile who
try to moderate have had a low percentage
of success.

The last part of the feedback interview
is to ask for a verbal commitment to change.
If the client still insists on moderation, a
contract is created for an eight-week period
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during which moderation skills are taught.
If, at that time, the client is unable to mod-
erate, the facts and observations are again
presented and abstinence is encouraged.
Most studies indicate that most clients at
that time choose abstinence.

It is important to note that, according to
a report by the Institute of Medicine, 1990,
there are four times as many problem
drinkers as there are alcohol-dependent
individuals. For those that argue against
moderation or believe the notion of pro-
gressivity, anumber of longitudinal studies
report that about 25-30 percent of people
having alcohol problems get worse over
time. The more common pattern is that peo-
ple move into and out of periods of alcohol
problems, with varying degrees of severity.
These periods are punctuated with episodes
of either abstinence or drinking without
problems. (Cahalan, 1970)

Treatment Options-Matching
Intervention to the Problem

In this approach our treatment options
move on a step-up approach--from least-
intensive to most-intensive. The services
range from sending the client home with
literature to referring for inpatient services.
The client is always involved in the treat-
ment selection based on the information
gathered and then presented in the motiva-
tional feedback session. The first step is
guided self-help.

Guided self-help is especially appro-
priate for problem drinker clients. The
client determines what he or she thinks
works best: Attending AA or non-disease
model self-help groups, reading, audio, or
video. What the clinician is practicing may
be secondary prevention because at this
stage, most people recognize when they
are beginning to have problems regulating
their drinking. Moderation may be the
treatment of choice at this level, with one
or two psychoeducational sessions recom-
mended.

In brief intervention, the counselor pro-
vides psychoeducation on the most essen-
tial aspects of moderation or abstinence:
managing urges, developing activities that
do not go well with drinking, planning
ahead to avoid drinking situations, and
avoiding the use of alcohol to cope with
problems.

In brief interventions, bibliotherapy is
used to provide more information out of ses-
sion. The first reading assignment explores
with the client the naturalness of ambiva-
lence. The clinician encourages the client to
explore the ambivalent feelings, to give
them a name, define them, and recognize

them when they do occur. Miller & Rollnick
give good coverage to ambivalence in their
book Motivational Interviewing.

Behavioral self-change is designed to
give the client effective coping skills to
replace habitual, maladaptive means of deal-
ing with life stressors. Coping skills deficits
are a major predisposing risk factor for
relapse (Monti, Abrams, Kadden &Cooney,
1989). This approach is based on the social
learning theory that addressing skills deficits
will increase the clients ability to manage
high-risk situations that might lead to relapse.
Clients develop solutions to fill the void cre-
ated when alcohol is removed.

An intensive outpatient program may
be a traditional 12-step program or more
extensive behavioral-change program,
depending on the philosophical perspective
of the client. The intensive outpatient pro-
gram involves all of the previous treatment
components, but the client is seen up to
four times a week.

The last treatment option is making a
referral to inpatient services. Some clients
come to us with a preconceived notion that
inpatient treatment is what they need, and
we do not try to talk them out of this idea.
We will explore other options if the client
wishes to hear them. In other cases, there
may be suicidal risks, severe withdrawal
symptoms or active psychosis, which would
indicate an inpatient referral.

Regardless of which treatment strategy,
if any, the client chooses, the clinician uses
a brief form of narrative therapy to continue
building the therapeutic relationship. This is
a brief, handwritten note reaffirming what
was discussed in the feedback session,
expressing optimism that the client will do
well, while recognizing the seriousness of
the problem, and reminding the client of the
next appointment.

There exists much controversy regard-
ingtreatment programs that teach that mod-
eration could be a viable goal for some
people. The international research available
indicates that there are many paths to recov-
ery from drug and alcohol abuse. It would
benefit us in the field to look openly at dif-
ferent options, particularly when the
research supports them.

References for this article are available
from the author.

Victor J. R. Werner (e-mail: vwerner
Qpsychlan.uams.edu) is a counselor with
Arkansas Employee Assistance Program and
president of the EAPA Arkansas Chapter;
Jimmie A. Wooding (e-mail: jawoodingC~?

psychlan.uams.edu), CEf1P, is director of

Arkansas Employee Assistance Program and
Behavioral Health Center. 1'~
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Foreword prepared by Sheila Macdonald, Director of
Legislation and Public Policy

The Legislation and Public Policy Department has pre-
pared the following list of orders, laws, and rules related ~
to Drug Free Workplace Programs (DFWPs) described in
the following article as well as other federal drug and
alcohol testing programs:

1. Executive Order (EO) No. 12564, September 15,
1986, to establish a DFWP program for federal
workers, to establish mandatory drug testing for
safety-sensitive federal workers, and to promulgate
scientific and technical guidelines for drug testing
programs. (The EO refers to use of EA programs to
carry out requirements in three places.)

2. Section 503 of Public Law (PL) 100-71, July 11,
1987, FY 1987 Supplemental Appropriations Act,
authorizes appropriations for federal drug testing
programs, and requires the U.S. Department of
Health and Human Services (HHS) to provide spec-
ificationsfor those programs, including establishing
federal standards for laboratories carrying out drug by ~dVIC~ St0~7~21"
testing analysis.

3. Federal Register (FR), April 11, 1988, Final
Guidelines, "Mandatory Guidelines for Federal
Workplace Drug Testing Programs," pages 11970- HIStOf}/ I~IaS pi"OVICIeCI US Wlt{~l some valuable
11989, sets forth the rules forimplementingEONo. 

~eSSOnS In rowth, SUCVIVd~, and the chap 11112564 and PL 100-71, 7/11/87. g g g
4. PL 100-690, November 1988, "Drug Free marketplace for various professions. In the 70s

Workplace Act of 1988," establishes DFWP
requirements for federal contractors and grantees. aI~1CI SOS, the insurance industry took On the
The law does not call for mandatory drug testing. 

taSl< of eliminating EAPs as a provider of
(The text contains two references to EA programs.)

5. FR, June 9, 1994, SAMHSA, PHS, HHS, employee assistance SefVICeS Irl the market-
Mandatory Guidelines for Federal Workplace
Drug Testing Programs," pages 29908-29931. pIdC2. They did so via that nastiest of all terms
These rules, which revise the FR, 4/11/88, t0 EA professionals—MANAGED CARE. The
"Mandatory Guidelines for Federal Workplace
Drug Testing Programs," Were de~eioped .n a~~or- sad part is that they were almost successful.
dance with EO No. 12564, 9/15/86, and, section
503 of PL 100-71, 7/11/87. The FR, 6/9/94, revi- Ys not the first time the EAP field has undergone drastic change. EAPs
sions incorporate changes based on HHS's first five I began as workplace-based alcohol programs. That they have grown to
years of experience with the original guidelines and the broad-brush approach most of us embrace today is directly attribut-
on public comments. able to the demands of the marketplace.

6. The "Omnibus Transportation Employee Testing Act Employees and employers alike wanted, or needed, more from their in-
of 1991 (OTETA)", makes mandatory alcohol and, house experts than just alcohol programs. The emergence of the drug culture
by reference, previous drug tests for safety-sensitive of the 60s, the related, multi-faceted stress factors that evolved with the faster
employees in aviation, motor carrier, railroad, mass paced lifestyles of a rapidly growing technocratic society, and the disinte-
transit, maritime, and pipeline industries. gration of the family unit all required more than simple alcohol programs to

7. FR, February 15, 1994, U.S. Department of meet the needs of the modern day employee.
Transportation, "Limitation on Alcohol Use by So we, as a profession, grew to meet the needs. And along with it, we
Transportation Workers," issued under the authori- ~ developed standards by which our profession would eventually be known
ty of OTETA, establishes alcohol testing rules for and respected. In the process, we developed certification so that profession-
safety-sensitive transportation workers, and, at the als had something to hold on to, and to hold up to the world, as a creden-
same time, incorporates previously existing drug tial attesting to those standards. The process was long and arduous and is far
testing rules for safety-sensitive transportation from complete. But it exists and is accepted.
workers. These are the rules that provide that a cer- Testimony to that fact is the inclusion of the certified employee assis-
tified employee assistance professional (CEAP) is tance professional (CEAP) as one of only five professional classifications
eligible, if otherwise qualified, to provide substance accepted by the Department of Transportation (DOT) to be a substance
abuse professional (SAP) services to employers with abuse professional (SAP) under the new federal regulations. Those regula-
safety-sensitive employees, who have tested posi- tions are directly related to the federal governments Drug-Free Workplace
tive for alcohol or drug use. Program (DFWP). So whaYs the problem?
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The problem is this: A large number
of the existing EA professionals across the
country have decided that the drug-free
workplace does not pertain directly to
them and that they should not embrace it
as a component of their EAP.
Unfortunately, they also see it as some-
thing they should not support, other than
to provide. EAP services for employees
who happen to get caught through drug
testing programs. Be that as it may, there
are other aspects of the drug-free work-
place that need to be considered by EA
professionals.

Let's Talk about Today

Just as those original EAPs grew to
meet the existing market demands, we
now need to look at what the current mar-
ketplace is demanding. Employers are
faced with rising healthcare insurance,
workers' comp laws, nightmarish costs,
the continually heavy burden of legislative
dictates, and the rising (skyrocketing) cost
of just doing business. Add to that the
demands of today's society and the impact
of those conditions in the workplace, and
being a small employer in today's market-
place becomes one of the most dangerous
positions in America. The business com-
munity has taken the attitude that they are
going to fight back via whatever means
are available.

We know, from federal studies,
National Crime Information Computer
(NCIC) statistics, American Management
Association (AMA) studies, and a wealth
of other information that drugs and alco-
hol in the workplace have an enormous
negative effect. The latest statistics show
some staggering figures with regard to that
reality. And those are only in the costs we
can measure; the "hard dollar" costs.
Those of us in the helping professions can
attest to the staggering effects in "soft dol-
lar" costs—the unmeasurables.

Given the burden of all the normal
business considerations an employer is
forced to deal with on a daily basis, he or
she does not want to add to that burden in
areas where he or she has no expertise.
For example, managing a human
resources department is difficult enough
without even considering the behavioral
health component.

The employer also does not want to
have to make more than one stop to
accomplish the objective, which is to deal
with and take care of the problem. EA pro-
fessionals have long claimed that EAPs are
the workplace solution in this arena. We
need to be ready to step forward again in

that capacity. To do that however, we're
going to have to, broaden our horizons.

Why? Consider the following realities:
The federal government, Congress,

and numerous state legislatures are either
considering or enacting some form of
managed care as the answer to healthcare
problems. In order to gain control of costs
to both employers and individuals, and in
an attempt to eliminate fraudulent utiliza-
tion, eliminate duplicative services, and,
in general, get a handle on the beast, these
groups are moving toward all-inclusive
programs.

Drug-free workplace programs are
one of the strongest managed care tools
for controlling skyrocketing workers'
comp costs. Workers' comp, health and

Drug--free
workplace programs
are one of the
strongest managed
care tools for
controlling
skyrocketing
workers' comp
COStS.

safety, and occupational health programs
are being lumped into single-focus pro-
grams now handled under risk manage-
ment or some similarly titled section in
most larger companies. And, in those
states already moving in that direction, EA
programs are being viewed as occupation-
al health programs, more so than in any
other category. Even the federal govern-
menYs ERISA program has viewed an EAP
as an employee benefit. As such, the EAP
has become a component of a confusing
umbrella program, handled normally by
people who are not trained to do so (with
the exception of internal EAPs, who, over
the past several years, have become more
the exception than the rule).

The vast number of employers in
America today are small- and mid-sized
employers with 250 employees or less;
indeed, most of these employers have
fewer than 10 employees. This is where
the larger portion of EAP business is going
to be focused in the future. And to do so
means that EAPs are going to have to re-
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focus and be able to become one-stop
shops for things relating to behavioral
health services.

The list of deliverables will include
knowledge of workers' comp issues as
they pertain to or impact the workplace,
benefits utilization review and control
(managed care with a focus on problem
resolution as opposed to cost control
only), health and safety issues, a wider
range of human resource issues (ADA,
civil rights, wrongful hiring, retention and
discharge laws, interpretations of existing
drug-free workplace laws as they pertain
to clients, the employer, the workplace,
etc.), and much more as the umbrella
opens wider to cover a broader range of
issues pertinent to the management of risk
issues in the workplace.

And, if there is to be a real market-
place for EAPs in the future, we are going
to have to provide services for those
small- and mid-sized employers. They
have neither the time nor the resources to
spread between two or three providers.
They will buy from the provider who can
handle all their needs under one service
and do so at a cost that is easy on the bud-
get. In order to accomplish that feat, EAPs
are going to have to realign their pro-
grams, either as part of a consortium
provider or as asingle-source provider.
Many EAPs across the country now do just
that. And, while they have gone through
periods of somewhat uncomfortable
growth, they are realizing the benefit of
being able to provide the umbrella of
behavioral health-related programs to
small- and mid-sized business people.

The Arguments

THE CONFLICT OF INTEREST
ARGUMENT

have continually heard the argument
from EA professionals that they are not
DFWP providers, that DFWP has nothing
to do with EAP. Historically, thaYs not true.
EAPs began as the worksite-based entity
designated to deal with the problems of
employees trying to cope with drug and
alcohol dependence. While that may not
take on the appearance of what is called
drug-free workplace today, EAPs do not
look like they did then, either. The point is
that there is much more to drug-free work-
place than the drug testing component.
And the rest of the program should cer-
tainly involve EAPs.

Development of a drug-free. work-
place policy and procedure without the
shepherding of an EA professional is often



an open invitation to abuse of power, the
demise of employee rights, and the gener-
ation of a litigious nightmare. IYs not that
employers start out to use this program to
intimidate employees; but, the confusion
and interpretation of the variety of legisla-
tive guidelines often leads unintentionally
to the above-mentioned problems.
Employers may find themselves in the
middle of a confusing and intimidating
quagmire of indecision and misinforma-
tion.

One of the primary functions of the
EA professional over the past decades has
been to be the neutral advocate for both
the employee and the employer. Who bet-
ter to guide the employer through the
maze and protect the employees' rights as
well?

The drug testing program is a small
component of the total program. Despite
that, negotiating a discounted price with
the drug testing lab could simply add to
your value and could be viewed by the
employer as a value-added service. Such a
package would include the design and
implementation of the program policy and
procedures, the testing component (which
you can usually contract out through one
of the labs or a local workers' comp
provider—both usually provide collection
sites and collectors), the EAP, the manage-
ment consultation and training, employee
education, and the follow-up manage-
ment of the program. Some consortium
providers also provide utilization review
and benefits design as services.

In case one has not noticed, many
features that I just described as DFWP
services have, for years, been EAP ser-
vices. In the implementation of its DFWP
Act, the state of Georgia stopped just
short of mandating EAPs in the imple-
mentation of its certification program.
Georgia goes so far as to tell prospective
certificants that if they have or employ
the services of an EA program, they will
have met four of the five necessary requi-
sites for certification.

THE ALL THINGS TO ALL PEOPLE
ARGUMENT

Face it. We're living in a society that
thrives on one-stop shopping. Even the
grocery store is no longer the simple food-
stuffs purveyor it was 20 years ago. Why?
Convenience and cost-effectiveness.
When I go to the store for a loaf of bread,
if I can also pick up the screws I need to
hang that picture and get the film devel-
oped, I'm going to be not only a .happy
shopper but also a repeat shopper. And

the supermarkets know that. Some of them
even have full-service banking facilities
and restaurants. Several stores include
video tape rentals and all include such
items as housewares and cosmetics.
They're not even calling themselves gro-
cery stores or supermarkets anymore—
today they're "marketplaces." We as pro-
fessionals in the field of behavioral health
services (the new term) need to become
marketplaces for our current and potential
clients. For those services and areas dis-
cussed above, we need to become edu-
cated so that we can provide the related
services as well.

Development of a
drug-free workplace
policy and
procedure without
the shepherding of
an EA professional is
often an open
invitation to abuse of
power, the demise of
employee rights, and
the generation of a
litigious nightmare.

This shift in focus may not be the one
we would have chosen, if given an option.
But it is the reality of the market we live in.
Indeed, it is not becoming "all things to all
people." It is "meeting the need."

THE I'M AN EAP! ARGUMENT

There are a number of EAP
Association members who carry neither
the certification nor the title. Nonetheless,
they are EA professionals by definition and
perception. One senior member, who is
an internal EA professional for -one of
America's larger corporations, makes the
statement that the title on his door today is
not the one that was there five years ago.
In fact, the title today reads something to
the effect of "Director, Managed
Behavioral Health Care Services." His
comment is that he wears that title so that
he can continue to provide the EAP ser-

vices to his employees and maintain the
program for which he's fought so hard to
give credibility. Yes, he does a number of
other things as well. For his company, he's
become the one-stop shop for behavioral
health services. But, by doing so, he's able
to maintain the core program of an EAP.

THE CONSORTIUM WILL GIVE EAPS A
BAD NAME ARGUMENT

Prior to the EACC and the certifica-
tion process, EAPs had developed a some-
what tarnished reputation without the
help of consortia. During the 70s, EAPs
developed the reputation of favoring
providers, cutting deals, and developing
unnecessary referrals to favored treatment
providers. Through the efforts of dedicat-
ed, ethical EAPs, the profession has been
able to clean up its act to the degree that
its credibility is touted in the new
Department of Transportation regulations.

The point here is that if EAPA, through
the EACC, developed certification in con-
certwith the CEAP to set the standards out
front, rather than after the fact, and then
promoted those standards through the
effective state agencies, much of the prob-
lem would have been eliminated before it
began. From there it would simply require
some education and promotion on the
part of the local chapters. Will this stop
the problem? No. But. then the CEAP cre-
dential has not stopped unethical EAPs
from doing business either. What the
CEAP does do is provide a mechanism
that may help attract members, establish
EAPs as the core providers of these and
related services, and give EA professionals
credibility that we can take to states across
the country as they implement their
DFWP legislative packages. And if you
want to see what good that can do, take a
look at what the EAPA Georgia Chapter
accomplished when their state imple-
mented DFWP legislation.

THE BOTTOM LINE

The bottom line is that the market-
place is changing. Managed care with
regard to behavioral health-related ser-
vices is changing its face, too. EA profes-
sionals are in a primary position to have
some deep, lasting effect on what the mar-
ket for our services will look like tomor-
row and for a lot of tomorrows to come.
But, to do so, we must be ready. To be
ready, we must look at the changing face
of the marketplace. Well over 20 states
have the Florida model, or something very
similar to it, in their legislative process at
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some level now. The Clinton
Administration, through the Office of
National Drug Control Policy, has stated
that one of its goals is to champion the
establishment of drug-free workplaces for
small- and mid-sized employers across the
country. And, like it or not, they will still
be around for at least another several
years.

Look at the fact that the drug-free
workplace is something that began with
the Republican Administration and car-
ried over to the current administration
with very little, if any, ruffles in the transi-
tion. More, not fewer, companies are
implementing the program, Congress cur-
rently has a multitude of bills sitting in the
wings to "universalize" drug testing and
drug testing procedures that would pre-
empt the states from establishing their
own guidelines. The federal drug-free
workplace program, under a mandate
from Congress, has strengthened the pro-
gram, not eased it as many predicted. The
Department of Transportation just last year
released 2200 Federal Register pages on
the testing of alcohol alone. It is in those
regulations that the CEAP gained national
credibility. Do these indicators sound as if
they are going away?

Hardly. And the reality draws closer
with every state that adopts DFWP legisla-
tion. Now, with EAP licensure laws being
proposed and adopted in a variety of
states, the reality is becoming more a case
of "waking up and smelling the coffee"
than "joining the parade."

A classic example of what I refer to is
the Presidents Alliance for Model State
Drug Laws (now the Alliance of Model
State Drug Laws). Within their proposed
models is a model for the licensure of
EAPs. The model is based in response to
or, more specifically, as support of, a
DFWP. As it stands, the model is basic and
singularly focused, albeit sound in
premise. As a model, it allows for recon-
figuration and adaptation. The point here
is that EAPs are being seen as one of, if not
the, keys to DFWP programs.

believe we, as a profession, have an
opportunity to seize the day here and we
need to move before someone else does
and we find ourselves playing catch-up
again. The model I refer to above is being
viewed and referenced by a great many
groups and individuals across the country
as what an EAP is and where it fits into the
scheme of things. As someone who is a
strong believer in both an EAP and DFWP,
greet that news with mixed emotions.

would hate to think that, after all EAPA

and a large number of dedicated EAPs
have gone through to establish credibility
for the profession, the final designation of
what an EAP is and what it does comes
down to this. On the other hand, I am
pleased to see that some people have rec-
ognized the relationship between the two
programs and have given us the opportu-
nity to mold the final product.

Yes, we can sit and attack the make-
up of the Alliance, their limited findings
and recommendations, or a thousand
other rationales that will keep us from act-
ing. The truth is that this is a representative
group of professionals from business, edu-
cation, the legal profession, and other
fields from across the nation. Instead of
sounding the alarm after the fire is a full
flame, we need to listen to their message
and take their lead and start formulating
some responsive action plans.

offer these suggestions for all EAPA
members to consider:

That we adopt a proactive position
regarding DFWP and move to become
more actively involved in its formation
as it spreads through the various states.
Such an effort would be in our own
best interest. And I believe that as the
market shrinks, we will need all the
opportunities we can get for strength-
ening our businesses.
That we charge EACC with the devel-
opment of a DFWP certification model,
either as an addendum to, or in concert
with, the CEAP. I suggest we do this
before someone else does it and we
find our CEAPs having to subscribe to
two (or more) masters.
That, through the Legislative and Public
Policy Committee (L&PP), we develop
a specific plan for EAPA's interaction
with the DFWP program as it becomes
more a part of the business community
across the country.
That we recognize the importance of
DFWP and the potential impact it may
have on EAP as a profession, and make
it a part of the L&PP priorities for
awareness and direction. In so doing,
the L&PP can not only inform the orga-
nization of what is happening and
where, but also can present appropriate
plans of action to the organization
through the auspices of the Executive
Committee and the Board.

David Stohler is the southern regional
representative of the EAPA Legislative and
Public Policy Committee and director of
Drug-Free Systems for Psych/Care, Inc., in
Marietta, Georgia. 1~
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CEAP
EXAMINATION
DATES
1995
Examination Dates:

May 11, 1996
December 7, 1996

Application Dates*

March 15, 1996
October 11, 1996

* The completed exam application must
be postmarked no later than the applica-
tion due date.

Eligibility Requirements. Candidates
must have three years full-time experi-
ence or a minimum of 3,000 hours
obtained over three years working in
employee assistance programs. This
work experience must be on-the job
employee assistance program knowl-
edge gained solely through employee
assistance experience—it is not expe-
rience shared by or transferred from
related duties, other professions, or
academic credits. The experience
must be from direct employment,
internship, or contracted responsibili-
ties for performing both employee
assistance clinical and organizational
consulting activities. The candidate
must show accountability for EAP
operations at specific organization(s).

For more information, contact:

EAPA, Inc.
Attention: EACC
2101 Wilson Boulevard,
Suite 500
Arlington, Virginia
22201-3062
Telephone: 703/522-6272
Fax: 703/522-4585



LETTERS TO THE EDITOR

Readers Respond to Managed Care Point/Cointerpoint'enjoyed your debate on EAP standards
and managed care (see July/August EAPA
Exchange, Point/Counterpoint, pp 6-7)

and look forward to continued discussion of
other challenging EAP topics. Instead of ask-
ing if managed care companies with EAPs
will maintain established EAP quality stan-
dards, the question asked should be: Does
managed care understand and value EAP
quality standards as well as the direct and
indirect value their application brings to the
purchaser organization?

The answer is Not Yet. Only when man-
aged care companies do understand will
they be able to develop and price these prod-
ucts intelligently, and sell them to customers.

From my vantage point as marketplace
analyst, provider, corporate consultant, and
purchaser, I would agree with John
Maynard's comments. Managed behavioral
healthcare vendors minimize costs and do
not see (and value) the intrinsic worth of
many EAP development and service features.

Dan Ansel made a good point when he
said that many EA professionals have not

agree with Daniel Ansel Quly/August
EAPA Exchange, Point/Counterpoint, pp
6-7) that quality standards are hard to

establish within the non-clinical workplace
activities; however, sometimes side-by-side
comparisons on established measures are
sufficient.
We provide an internal EAP to the

University of Tennessee Medical Center and
have done so during a period when the state
of Tennessee has contracted with a number
of nationally known managed care organi-
zations to provide statewide EAP service.
Currently, they are providing an integrated
EAP/behavioral health program. Compared
to the state's most recent published data, our
utilization is more than twice that of the
managed care organizations' and our
assessed cases of alcohol and drug problems
are twice that of MCOs' (and could be more
depending on their means of data calcula-
tion.) We also have 10 times the number of
supervisory referrals.
We believe that, under the circum-

stances, the proper name of "integrated
EAP/behavioral health services" should
be "reduced barrier behavioral health
services."

Businesses benefit from integrated
services because of the reduced fees negoti-

..~ ~~~~\ 1'
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done enough to establish their value within
the organization; EAPs sometimes try to be
all things to all people, as a result, their dis-
tinct function and value are diminished.
However, it is important to remember that
chemical dependency, our EAP specialty,
and other health problems are often quite
difficult to handle, and many organizations
will deny their existence.

Internal EA Professionals have also taken
risks to expose "unhealthy" management
practices, sometimes attheirown peril. When
EA Professionals, as change agents, confront
denial, they, too, can become victims of cor-
porate restructuring.

Internal EA professionals can also be vic-
tims of corporate politics, re-engineering,
and cost-cutting. The Triangle Research
Institute's recent survey results, which
explained that overall external EAPs are less
costly than internal EAPs, may just be the
ammunition for one looking to reduce pay-
roll expenses. Unfortunately, this study does
not differentiate the nature of service deliv-
ery within these models.

ated from mental healthcare providers, and
employees benefit from the free initial ses-
sion(s) of mental health counseling.
Managed care companies benefit from the
huge administrative overlay necessary in
managing use that is mostly self-managing
in outpatient settings. If businesses recog-
nized that easy access into outpatient men-
tal health services is valued and cost-effec-
tive (as research tells us), they could achieve
this by restructuring their benefit plan to
reflect these research realities. This might
include six free consultations per year with a
panel provider, and then up to a total of 12
sessions before utilization review is initiated.
EA professionals will continue to provide the
intensive consultation, workplace interven-
tion, and behavioral management training
that health insurers cannot provide because
they have little knowledge, minimal experi-
ence, or weak linkages into the personnel
management side of businesses.

Janice P. Woychik, LCSW, CEAP
Director, Employee Assistance Program
The University of Tennessee Medical
Center at Knoxville
Suite 101
415 Walnut Street
Knoxville, TN 37902

My own experience indicates that more
progressive EAPs have moved away from an
exclusive rehabilitative and remedial model
to one of prevention, early detection, educa-
tion, and training, in addition to other core
functions, such as assessment, referral, and
follow-up. EA professionals heading these
programs try to anticipate work-based prob-
lems that may impact work functions in the
short-and long-term.

When EAPs are perceived within an
organization simply as a supplemental
health benefit for individuals with psychoso-
cial problems, the results may be somewhat
limited. But when EAPs are perceived as an
invaluable resource that serves as the work-
place consultant for performance manage-
ment, productivity, as well as healthcare
benefit issues, the EAP has considerably
more influence and impact.

James M. Oher, CSW, CEAP
Managing Director
J.M. Oher &Associates
10 Tanglewood Place
Chappaqua, NY 10514-2528

HaveYou Changed
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by Jan Dellenbach, MSW, CEAP, end Gerry Pas, MS, CEAP

The employee assistance industry has
experienced substantial growth in the
last decade. Employers of every kind

are looking to include EAPs as part of their
benefits packages, and to utilize them as a
tool for improving employee morale and
productivity. Are government employees,
particularly state employees, reaping the
benefits of this growth? In working with the
State of Wisconsin EAP, we wanted to com-
pareour program to other state EAPs and use
our findings to recommend changes to
improve the quality and consistency of ser-
vices offered. These findings suggest key fac-
tors for improving the stability and exten-
siveness of state government EAPs.

Two previous surveys were conducted to
study state government EAPs. The first was
completed by Kemp (1983), which found 39
states with EAPs; 15 of the responding states
had statewide programs covering all
employees. The second survey was done by
Drew (1989) in cooperation with the
Employee Assistance Society of North
America (EASNA). This survey found 42
states with EAPs and 30 providing statewide
programs.

In 1993-94, we conducted our own sur-
vey of all state governments. The findings
are the result of a written questionnaire and

phone contacts with a1150 states. While sim-
ilar areas were covered in all three surveys,
we will focus on our results. We found 45 (of
50) states with some form of an EAP in place;
34 were statewide. Two of the states with
EAPs in 1983 had discontinued them a
decade later; five of 11 states without EAP
service in 1983 were still without service in
1993.

The good news is that there is growth in
EAPs for state government employees. Table 1
shows that 34 of the 45 states providing EAP
services have statewide coverage. However, a
significant number of state employees are still
without the benefits of an EAP Program avail-
ability and stability are affected by various
challenges presented by the public sector.
Our goal in providing this information is to
raise awareness of the challenges and
opportunities awaiting the EAP community
in general, and government employees and
administrators, in particular.

Stakeholders and Decision-Makers

One challenge facing employee assis-
tance programs in state government comes
from the complex dimensions of power
within government entities. Stakeholders in
the power structure include the vast array of
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elected officials and their citizen electorate,
administrators and managers, employees
and unions. The hierarchy is more complex
because of the greater number of people
involved in decisionmaking. The decision-
makers may have constituencies with oppos-
ing views. Too many decisionmakers increas-
es the difficulty of implementing an EAP that
everyone will agree upon and support.

The number of those making decisions is
compounded by the various agencies within
government, having independent hierar-
chies from one another and different views
of the function or value of a program. The

Table

1993-94 Survey

PROGRAMS # OF STATES

Statewide Program 34

Individual Agency

Programs

No Program 5

Universities Included 16

Universities Separate 3



Table 2

Location, by
Department, for the
34 Statewide EAPs

8 Department of
Personnel/Civil
Service/Human Affairs

6 Department of
Administration

5 Department/Division of
Alcohol/Drug Abuse

Benefits (unsure if
department or division)

Governor's Office of
Employee Relations

3 Not specified

EAP may be a priority for one department
while another department may see no use
for it. Or, both agencies may be interested in
the EAP, but the respective administrators
may have very different ideas of how to
implement one, or what it should look like.

These factors support the recommenda-
tion for having a centralized program serv-
ing all employees and having the ability to
justify and oversee the funding.

Support for Credibility

Another major challenge for an EAP is
credibility. We all know that a program is in
trouble if there is a perception that top offi-
cials in the organization do not believe in it
or promote it. In state government, that top-
level buy-in must come from many more
directions: the governor, cabinet members,
legislators, and agency administrators, for
example.

Credibility and top-level support may be
improved by hiring professional staff with
training and experience in EAPs, credentials
which differentiate EA professionals from
counseling and treatment providers. This
helps clarify the EAP's role and effectiveness
in early intervention for job performance dif-
ficulties. Table 3 shows the types of pro-
grams offered within 45 states.

Only 11 states with an internal profes-
sional, external provider, or combined inter-
nal and external program reported the total

number of professional staff serving employ-
ees in their EAP. Of those states, the average

staff to employee ratio was 1 for 7,104
employees. One state has 1 counselor for
36,000 employees.

Coordination with Other Benefits

Program utilization and evaluation are
also key elements to improving the credibil-
ity and conveying the benefits of the EAP.
EAPs must be able to provide outcome infor-
mation about employees served and
whether or not the services actually
improved the employees' situation and
saved the state money. Our survey found the
average utilization rate of statewide govern-
ment EAPs was 5.4 percent, which is cohsis-
tentwith the national rate. However, only 24
of the 34 statewide EAPs had any form of
evaluation process in place, which consist-
ed mainly of user satisfaction surveys. This
demonstrates a gap in vital information that
must be provided to support the continua-
tion of these services.

During follow-up conversations, several
EAP directors reported little coordination
with those developing the benefits package
for employees. A few state directors indicat-
ed that managed care had determined the
type of EAP services that would be provided.
Directors in both of these situations
expressed an interest in being more actively
involved in coordinating EAP with benefits
that relate to mental health and substance
abuse coverage. While there may be some
negatives, there is a greater opportunity to
provide more outcome data when the EAP is
included in the managing of employees'
benefits.

Another challenge, of course, is funding.
Several states indicated concern about los-
ing their funding. Given the current trend
towards cutting programs at the federal
level, decisionmakers are scrutinizing all
expenditures. The program may have a
stronger chance of survival if it is mandated
by a state statute, rather than created by
executive order or joint resolution. Programs
with funding built into the annual budget

Table 3

1993-94 Survey

TYPE OF EAP # OF STATES

Internal-Peer 4
Internal-Professional 14
External 15
Internal/External 4
U n I<n~wn 7

Table 4

1993-94 Survey

FUNDING # OF STATES

General Purpose
Budget 21
Program Revenue
-Federal 2
Program Revenue
-Operational (user fee) 4
General Purpose
&Federal 2
Insurance Benefits 2
None 8
Unknown I 0

may have more stability than those initiated
in one agency with grant money which may
disappear in a year or two. Table 4 shows
that most of the states in our survey funded
their program from the general purpose bud-
get.Only nine states mandated their EAPs in
state statute.

A surprising outcome in the survey
involved unions. Twenty of the 34 states
with statewide programs reported having
unions. However, only nine states identified
their EAP in their collective bargaining
agreements. This issue may provide another
point of vulnerability for the survival of the
EAP.

The outcome of this study found
Wisconsin to be somewhere in the middle
regarding its program structure and services.
During the program's 20-year existence, it
has been limited by many of the factors
already discussed. The irony of doing this
survey, which set out to compare our EAP to
other states, is that Wisconsin is eliminating
the statewide director position at the end of
1995.

Discontinuing this position means losing
the coordination function that ensured con-
tinuity and consistency of services and EAP
services to approximately 3,500 employees.
State agencies will be responsible for pro-
vidingtheir own services, resulting in almost
half of the agencies losing services that were
provided by the statewide director.
Unfortunately, Wisconsin is not alone in fac-
ing program cuts that will affect the overall
quality of services and the availability of ser-
vices to all state employees.

The above data suggest that it is no
longer enough to be good at performing, the
duties of an EAP counselor or program
administrator. One must also excel at mar-

NOVEMBER/DECEMBER 1995 EAPA EXCHANGE 27

i11



keting and promoting the EAP, while demon-
strating its cost-effectiveness. Our sugges-
tions'for improving the stability of the EAP
include the following:

(1) Mandate the program by state statute;
(2) Centralize the administrative and

services functions;
(3) Use professional staff with EAP certifi-

cation;
(4) Link EAP to the health plan;
(5) Where unions are present, reference

EAP in the collective bargaining agree-
ment;

(6) Conduct program evaluations that
provide client feedback and outcomes
data.

3 4 Statewi d e
Government EAPs

ALASKA

', Jim Griffin
Account Executive
Human Affairs of Alaska
4300 B Street, Suite 202
Anchorage, AK 99503
907-562-0794

ARIZONA
We have learned through our survey and Roy Horton

our experience that state government EAPs ~ Employee Assistance Representative
generally are in a vulnerable position. Those State of Arizona EAP
programs that seemed to be financially sta- 1831 W. Jefferson, Room 104
ble and well integrated statewide are those Phoenix, AZ 85007
which have incorporated the suggestions ~ 602-542-4200
stated above. We hope these suggestions
and consultation with other states will be CALIFORNIA
beneficial to developing strategies to
strengthen state government programs. Diane Hachey

State EAP Coordinator
Dept. of Personnel Administration
Division of Benefits Administration
1515 South Street, North Building
Suite 400

Partners, 95814-7243
lll~/ ~ 916-324

-9353A

COLORADO
Is a comprehensive EAP service

company based in Seattle, WA.

We offer affordable proactive-systems

solutions designed to increase

organizational effectiveness and

employee job performance.

Our services include:

• Organizational Development

&Training

• Counseling Model EAO

• Employee Wellness

For more information, call us at

1-800-754-0370 or visit us

at the Seattle Trade Show

(exhibition booth #406).

Ed Kraft
Director, Employee Assistance Program
Department of Personnel
1313 Sherman Street, Room 319
Denver, CO 80203
303-866-4314

DELAWARE

Paul Poplawski, Ph.D.
Director of Training
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Drug Abuse &Mental Health
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302-577-4980

HAWAII

Diane Sumida
Employee Assistance Branch
Department of Personnel Services
810 Richards Street, Suite 950C
Honolulu, HI 96813

IDAHO

Rebecca L. Fry
Human Resource Manager
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Idaho Department of Administration
650 W. State Street, Room 100
Boise, ID 83720
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Casey Engelman
EAP Administrator
State of Illinois EAP
618 Stratton Office Building
Springfield, IL 62706

INDIANA_

Robert Flood
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Employee Assistance Services for You
402 W. Washington, Room W161
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IOWA
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KANSAS
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Health Promotion Administrator
Lifeline
Landon State Office Building
900 SW Jackson, Room 951-5
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KENTUCKY

Mary lane Cowherd
Branch Manager
Kentucky Employee Assistance Program
Bush Building
403 Wapping Street
Frankfort, KY 40601
502-564-5788

LOUISIANA

Rosemary Hannie
Deputy Commissioner of Administration
Louisiana State EAP
P.O. Box 94095
Baton Rouge, LA 70804-9095
504-342-7232



MAINE State Personnel Office TENNESSEE

Frank Johnson, Director
825 Topeka Street

Dr. Carol Boone; EAP Administrator
State Employee Health

Santa Fe, NM 87501
Department of Finance &

Bureau of Human Resources
505-827-992

Administration
State House Station 4

NEW YORK
Andrew Jackson State Office Building

Augusta, ME 04333 Suite 1400
207-287-4515 Arlene Murphy 500 Deadericl< Street

Assistant Director, EAP Nashville, TN 37243-0295
MARYLAND Governor's Office of 615-741-1925

Frederick Ramsey, Director
Employee Relations

Employee Assistance &Wellness Prog.
845 Central Avenue VERMONT

Department of Personnel
q~bany, NY 12206

john Taylor
301 W. Preston Street, Room 607

518-457-9381
EAP Coordinator

Baltimore, MD 21201
NORTH CAROLINA

c%ADAP
410-225-1012 ~, 103 S. Main Street

Ed Munnich, Director Waterbury, VT 05671-1701
MICHIGAN Division of EAP 802-241-2173

William Dowling, Ph.D.
111 E. North Street

Employee Service Program
Raleigh, NC 27601 VIRGINIA

Department of Civil Service
919-733-9545

Herbert Boyd, Manager
P.O. Box 30002

OH10
State Employee Assistance Services

Lansing, MI 48909 Program
517-373-763 Sanford Weinberg 700 E. Franklin Street, Suite 801

Executive Director Richmond, VA 23219
MINNESOTA Ohio EAP 804-786-6741

Keith Tvedten, Director
106 N. High Street, 4th Floor

Minnesota State EAP
Columbus, OH 43215 WASHINGTON

Meridian Bank Building, Suite 200
614-644-8545

Reuben Johnson
205 Aurora Avenue

OKLAHOMA
Manager

St. Paul, MN 55103 Employee Advisory Service
612-296-9732 Robert L. Stevens Olympia, WA 98504-7540

Coordinator, State EAP 206-753-3260 Ext. 11
NEBRASKA 2101 N. Lincoln Blvd., Room G80

Cynthia Howard
Oklahoma City, OK 73105-4504 y~/~SCONSIN

Administrator, Employee Benefits
405-521-6379

Jan Dellenbach
State Personnel Division

OREGON Statewide EAP Director
301 Centennial Mall South Department of Employment Relations
P.O. Box 94905 Carolyn Van Dyl<e 137 E. Wilson Street
Lincoln, NE 68509-4905 Benefits Coordinator Madison, WI 53702
402-471-2832 Department of Administrative Services 608-267-1002

155 Cottage Street, NE
NEVADA Salem, OR 97310 WYOMING

David Mancuso
503-378-3964

)ean DeFratis
Supervisor, EAP

PENNSYLVANIA Manager
2501 E. Sahara Substance Abuse Program
Las Vegas, NV 89158 Jeff Johnson Division of Behavioral Health
702-486-4280 Project Office of State EAP Hathaway Building

514 Finance Building Cheyenne, WY 82002
NEW JERSEY Harrisburg; PA 17120 307-777-6494

Dr. Joan York
717-787-8575

Chief Counselor
References for this article are available from

Employee Advisory Service RHODE ISLAND the authors.

1052 Spruce Street, CN 320 Robert MacDonald, President, CEO
At the time this article was written, Jan

Trenton, NJ 08625 RIEAP, Inc,
Dellenbach was the statewide EAP director

609-292-8543 120 Centerville Road
with the Department of Employment Relations

Warwick, RI 02886
in Madison, Wisconsin, She is now account

NEW MEXICO 401-732-9444
manager with United Healthcare in
Milwaukee. Gerry Pas is an EAP counselor for

Diana Curtiss National Employee Assistance Services, Inc.
Director, EAP in Waukesha, Wisconsin. 1~
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DOT UPDATE

The Benefit of a Past Public Policy Victory
EA Professionals, CEAPs Prepare to Offer DOT Programs, SAP Services to Smaller Employers

by Sheila Macdonald, Director of Legislation and Public Policy

n January 1, 1996, U.S.
Department of Transportation
(DOT) Alcohol and Drug Testing

Rules take effect for small businesses and
government agencies—those with between
1 and 50 safety-sensitive employees. More
than 6.3 million safety-sensitive transporta-
tion workers in rail, air, pipeline, mass tran-
sit, maritime and trucking industries will be
covered. Larger companies, which were
covered as of January 1, 1995, will continue
to implement these same rules.Most of these
workers will be holders of commercial dri-
vers licenses (CDLs) who drive trucks or
other vehicles that weigh 26,001 pounds or
more, or carry 15 passengers or more, or
carry hazardous substances.

Managers, supervisors and employees of
these smaller companies or government
departments will need to implementor meet
the requirements to comply with the law.
Speculation that the January 1 implementa-
tion date might be delayed cannot be con-
firmed in Washington as of late-October. All
signs indicate that DOT will hold all
employers responsible for assuring that (a)
random tests are conducted for covered
employees and, (b) when appropriate, tests
are conducted for reasonable suspicion/
cause, post-accident and follow-up. Pre-
employmentdrug testing is still applicable to
five transportation modes, but not to gas
pipeline employees; pre-employment alco-
hol testing has been dropped for all trans-
portation types.

EAPA Provides DOT Training and
Materials

For the past year, EAPA has developed
information packets, published articles by
members, printed summary charts, and
offered a variety of other tools to enhance
our members' ability to plan and offer alco-
hol and drug programs and SAP services to
employers. The Association has sponsored
training videos and handouts. On a number
of occasions, EAPA has worked directly with
DOT stafF to elicit answers to difficult ques-
tions and provide views on policy develop-
ment. EAPA has initiated two all-day DOT
training workshops, one on March 18,1995,

in Washington, D.C., and another that will
take place in Seattle on Saturday, November
11. More than 120 participants are expected
to meet in Seattle for this pre-annual confer-
ence session.

In an effort to spread information on D07
rules to as many members as possible, EAPA
developed a training module for local chap-
ters to use in creating local or regional work-
shops. Chapters that have held, or are sched-
uled to hold, DOT workshops include
Crossroads (Pleasanton, CA), San Francisco
(CA), Santa Clara (CA), Sacramento (CA), New
Jersey, Pittsburgh (PA), Massachusetts, St. Louis
(MO), North Hampton Beach, L.I., New York,
and Pacific Northwest (Seattle, WA).

DOT Charts

Published in conjunction with this article
are two important charts designed to provide
specific information about (1) SAP functions
and (2) the DOT's Operating Administra-
tions' (OA's) differing requirements for num-
ber ofsupervisors that must observe if a "rea-
sonable suspicion" or "reasonable cause"
test is to occur.

Chart 1 - "Substance Abuse Professional
(SAP) Decision Process"

This chart was originally created by
Charla Parker, CEAP, and appeared as a part
of her January 1995 EAPA Exchange article,
"BATS, SAPS and MRO's: Understanding
Their Roles," pages 18-20. This chart has
been revised and incorporates new insights
about SAP functions described in the June
1995 DOT brochure, "Substance Abuse
Professional Procedures Guidelines for
Transportation Workplace Drug and Alcohol
Testing Programs."

Chart 2 - "Reasonable Suspicion Testing
Determination"

Recently, at the request of EAPA mem-
bers who had received conflicting informa-
tion, EAPA wrote to U.S. DOT to ask for clar-
ification on the number of supervisors
required to observe an employee in a "rea-
sonable suspicion" or "reasonable cause"
situation before a test could be required. In
response, the department issued a definitive
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chart, which is released for the first time in
this issue of the EAPA Exchange. This chart
lists OA differences for various substances
and conditions. This chart is essential in
helping service providers sort out the vari-
ables. (No wonder so many people have
been confused.)

New Training and Marketing
Support for SAPs

Second Edition EAPA National SAP Roster

The Second Edition of the EAPA National
Substance Abuse Professional (SAP) Roster
has gone to press and will be available for
sale at the Annual Conference in Seattle.
More than 180 additional names have
been integrated with the 536 names in the
First Edition. As with the First Edition,
which is already sold out, the second will
be marketed as an addendum to the EAPA
Directory of Employee Assistance
Program Consultants, a national listing of
external or independent contractors of EA
Programs. The combined package will be
for sale at the Annual Conference or
through the EAPA Resource Center for
$19.00; persons listed in the Second
Edition will receive a copy at no cost.

New SAP Video, SAP Manual

A new video and manual, which describe
the SAP functions as required by DOT, have
been prepared jointly by EAPA members
and Buckley Productions. The world pre-
mier of the new materials will take place at
EAPA's second DOT Workshop on Saturday,
November 11, in Seattle, Washington. Rick
Buckley has finished shooting the video and
EAPA-member, Charla Parker, CEAP, an
expert on DOT rules, has completed writing
the accompanying SAP manual. EAPA
President George Cobbs, CEAP, and his
counterpart at the Association of Substance
Abuse Medicine (ASAM), David Smith,
M.D., are co-introducers of the video. They
emphasize the importance of the SAP in
implementing the DOT testing programs
and protecting the safety of the traveling
public. The video and accompanying mate-
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rials, plus earlier video pacl<-
ages, will be on display and
available for sale in the con-
vention center's exhibit hall.

More DOT Rules from
the Federal Register

For those following the latest
DOT rues, the following
appeared in the FR from
August 1, 1995 through
October 13, 1995 as follows:

FTA says Certain
1/olunteers Nod Subject
to Testing

FR, August 2, 1995, Final Rule,

Federal Transit Administration

(FTA), pages 39618-39620. The

FTA amends its alcohol and drug

testing rules (1) to make clear that

volunteer transit drivers, those

who are true volunteers and who

do not receive any benefit from

their service, do not have to

undergo alcohol and drug test-

ing; (2) to allow testing to occur
for non-rail employees in non-

fatal, post-accident situations

without a citation being issued

(currently, the rules require a cita-
tion first); and, (3) to not change

the definition of accident to

include the discharge of firearms

by transit security personnel

(these personnel are already cov-

ered by the rules),

New Devices Approved
for Saliva Tests for Alcohol

FR, August 15, 1995, Notice,
National Highway Traffic Safety
Administration, pages 42214-
42215. Notice identifies two
new alcohol saliva test devices
thlt meet DOT specifications; to
date, four breath alcohol testers
and three saliva alcohol testers
have received DOT approval.

U.S. DOT Extends
Alcohol and Drug
Testing Rules to
Canadian and Mexican
Commercial Drivers

FR, September 22, 1995, Final

Rule Federal Highway Admin-

istration (FHWA), pages 49322-

49326. This final rule extends

the alcohol and drug testing

requirements of Omnibus

Transportation Employee Testing

Act (OTETA) of 1991 to employ-

ees of foreign motor carrier

companies, mostly those locat-

ed in Canada and Mexico; the

effective date for larger compa-

nies will be July 1, 1996 and for

smaller foreign employers, July

1, 1997. (Canadian and

Mexican-based EA professionals

are in an ideal situation to offer

services to covered employers,

supervisors, and employees in

these countries.)

Reasonable Suspicion Testing Determination

Operating RS Number of
Administration Determination Supervisors

F~ Dru s 2
Alcohol 1

FHWA Drugs 1
Alcohol 1

FRA Drugs 2
Alcohol 1

~.A Drugs 1
Alcohol 1

RSPA"
Drugs 2
Alcohol 1

CG*"
Drugs 2
Alcohol 2

* FAA-Fordrugs, two supervisors are always needed for 121 certificate holders and
for employers with 50 or more covered employees; employers (other than 121 cer-
tificate holders) with fewer than 50 covered employees require only one. Drug
determinations are called "reasonable cause" rather than "reasonable suspicion".

" RSPA-For drugs, if the employer has fewer than 50 covered employees only one
supervisor is required.

""* CG-For both drugs and alcohol, two supervisors are required when practical,
otherwise only one is required



Yes !
Treatment
works

The most important question you can ask
concerning substance abuse treatment is

whether or not it works. At Valley Hope, our
answex is a resounding Yes! Treatment Works.
People can and do recover from their addiction
to alcohol and other drugs. Lost work days can
become productive work days and families torn
apart by the addiction can begin to love again.

There are some other important questions.
Valley Hope's answer is the same for each...Yes.

Yes, Valley Hope ofTers quality substance abuse
treatment services with the focus on individual recovery.

Professional, certified staff direct an individualized
treatment plan. All Valley Hope facilities are JCAHO .

accredited and/or state licensed.

Yes, the treatment services offered by Valley Hope are
grounded in 12-Step philosophy with strong emphasis on
family participation, spirituality (non-denominational) and

~ continuing care placement.

Quality treatment does not have to be expensive.
Valley Hope can answer your questions about

af~'ordability with a resounding~es, too. Call us
today and let Valley Hope say kes to your

treatment needs.

ees.
•

~~~

VALLEY HOPE
ASSOCIATION

Alcohol, Drug and Related Treatment Services
Treatment facilities in Arizona, Colorado, Kansas, Missouri, Nebraska and Oklahoma.

Fly to Recovery Program available across the United States.

Corporate Offices P.O. Box 510 Norton, KS 67654

ADMISSIONS 1-800-544-5101 INFORMATION 1-800-654-0486



POINT/COINTERPOINT

Is There a Need for States to License EA Professionals?

YES.
Jack Freckman, CEAP

Freckman and Associates

Continued efforts to pass state licensure
laws for EA professionals are not only critical
to the continuation of legitimizing our pro-
fession, but also to our survival. If we do not
protect our profession through licensure, it is
almost certain that some other profession or
group will enact laws to govern the practice
of employee assistance.
We recognize and accept the certified

employee assistance professional (CEAP)
credential as the hallmark of our profession.
But licensing EA professionals gives EAPs
legitimacy and credibility. In fact, licensure
could validate the CEAP as the credential of
our profession.

NO.
Richard A. Chaifetz, Psy.Dy

Chief Executive Officer
and

David Levine, MSW
Senior Vice President

ComPsych Behavioral Health Corporation

As arrogant as a negative response to this
question may sound to proponents of EA pro-
fessional licensure, what is really at issue is not
licensure but competency. Although there's no
need for states to license EA professionals, it is
essential that these practitioners be knowledge-
able of workplace issues. The EAPA practice
guidelines and criteria for the CEAP credential
provide clear parameters for competent
employee assistance practice. Competency is
essential in program design, supervisory con-
sultations, health promotion, and early inter-
vention skills; however, licensure is not the
route to take to ensure those things.

Employee assistance is a practice focus,
not a discipline. The primary disciplines pro-
viding clinical EAP services that effectively
assess and intervene in mental health and
substance abuse problems are already regu-
lated and licensed by states. Every state has a
form of licensure or registration for social
workers and psychologists. Most states also

For years, we have stated that employee
assistance is uniquely different from other pro-
fessions, as evidenced by our core technology.
Licensure could validate this concept.

The CEAP credential does not provide
the regulating force that is needed to protect
our profession. This effort must be provided
through state licensure laws, much the same
way that other professions have legitimized
and protected themselves.

Many EAPA members have stated that we
want only qualified people to provide EA
services. EA professionals must have special
training and acquire special skills. We want
to ensure that persons providing EA services
have those skills and training. With state
licensure laws, we will have a means to
ensure that the people providing EA services
are qualified and meet certain standards
established by our professional organization.
Licensure will also bind these EA profession-

certify alcohol and drug counselors, as desig-
nated by state-specific acronyms such as
CADC, CCDP, CAC, SAP, etc. State regulation
of mental health and substance abuse profes-
sionals does not in itself ensure competency
in employee assistance; however, other meth-
ods can and do. CEAP certification and cre-
dentialing activities as well as case manage-
ment and oversight of treatment can comple-
ment acaregiver who's otherwise equipped
to provide sound clinical service.

As American business and healthcare
have worked to trim unnecessary overhead,
why would we introduce licensure require-
ments that would add to the administrative
burden and costs of EAP service? To protect
EA professionals through licensure would be
a misplaced effort. To maintain and develop
EAP skills and continue to demonstrate those
competencies in service to customers will
permit the forces of the marketplace to rec-
ognize and reward the true value of employ-
ee assistance practice.

EAPs are a vital component of successful
business practice. Efforts to institutionalize that
vitality could risk diminishing the inherent
value of our services. The late researcher and
academician Harrison Trice described our
field as one that is "fueled by compassion."
Lets channel that compassion into under-
standingthe practice setting and the clients we
serve, not the artificial security of regulation.
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als to the highest standards and ethics with-
inour profession. Without licensure, we will
be unable to ensure that these standards and
practices will be met.

When managed care was coming into
the forefront of the behavioral healthcare
field, many people in employee assistance
thought that since we had basically already
been doing managed care (referring clients
to the most appropriate, effective, and cost-
effective resource), we would continue to do
so with no problems. We learned a valuable
lesson. We did not protect ourselves and lost
major ground in that area. We have been
playing catch up ever since.

The same holds true for licensure. Efforts
are being made in some states, by other pro-
fessions, to claim they have the sovereign
right to control and license those who pro-
vide employee assistance services. If we do
not act aggressively to enact licensure laws
in all states, then one by one, we will lose
the ability to practice our profession.

We as EAPs do not want to
become buffalo.

Once upon a time, millions of buffalo
roamed the land. A lot of people said,that we
almost made the buffalo extinct. But we did-
n't.. The buffalo themselves almost made
themselves extinct.

Buffalo were shot from a buffalo stand
with a Sharps buffalo rifle. The rifle shot had
to kill the buffalo instantly so the other buf-
falo didn't stampede away. When a buffalo
was killed in this way, his buddy just stood
there and didn't make the connection
between the "bang" and his companion
dropping dead. The buffalo just stood there
and said, "Damn. Look at that. Fred died."
When the next shot was fired and the next
buffalo died, the buffalo just stood there
once again and said, "Damn. Look at that.
George just died." And as long as every buf-
falo was killed instantly, the others wouldn't
run away.

Now if one of them had gotten wounded
and went running around, creating a distur-
bance, then they would all have gotten
spooked and run away. Buffalo hunters
could kill 200, 300, 400 buffalo at one time.
The buffalo's inability to understand what
was happening was responsible for his
almost becoming extinct. ►@!



INTERNATIONAL NEWS

U.S. and German Youth :Separated by More Than an Ocean
by Carol M. Schubeck, MSW, LCSW, CEAP
Consultant: Renee Weitz, Diplom-Sozialpadagogin(FH)

'have had the opportunity to live in
Wisconsin, New Mexico, Ohio,
Michigan, California, and now Germany

for the past 20 months. I have enjoyed the
multiple cultures and experiences and have
enjoyed the cultural influence of each envi-
ronment.

The core of one's life is a combination of
heredity and environment. In developing
this article, it was not my desire to acknowl-
edge heredity or environment as more
important, butto highlightthe cultural differ-
ences between the United States and
Germany.

Many U.S. corporations are operating in
international markets, and many members
of the work force may have a Germanic cul-
tural influence. Let's compare the cultures of
the United States and Germany and identify
variables that have influenced an 18-or 19-
year-old who stands on the threshold of
entering the work force.

Specht and Craig in Human
Development, A Social Work Perspective
states that "adolescence is a transition from
childhood dependency to adult self-suffi-
ciency. This involves a physical maturation,
sexual maturation, broadened cognitive
capacities, moral development, and
achievement of one's identity by disengag-
ing from one's parental family and making
decisions about careers, schooling, and
employment. In industrial societies, adoles-
cence is a lengthy process as compared to
hunting and agrarian societies where transi-
tion to adulthood is linked to the time of
physical maturation." With that definition in
mind, IeYs examine the two cultures from
birth to age of employment.

The Early Years

In Germany, pregnancy leave for the
mother is established bylaw and includes six
weeks leave prior to the birth and up to three
years of leave with pay after the birth. Either
the mother or father may apply for this leave
in blocks of three months of time following
the birth. In the United States, a mother's
pregnancy leave will vary according to the
employer but, most frequently, the allotted
time off is six weeks total. The Family and

\' ";, ~ 1'.

Medical Leave Act of 1993 allows for family
leave for up to four months a year when
applied in advance by an employee; howev-
er, this leave is without pay.

In Germany, the nuclear family -and
extended family live near one another, and
sometimes on the same strasse (street) and in
the same town. In the United States, the
nuclear family frequently lives in a different
city, state, or country. In American military
families, the family relocates every one to
three years; by age 17, a student may have
lived in 10-15 different states, countries, or
territories.

In Germany, a child's needs until age 13
will be the first focus of the family's plan-
ning, scheduling of social events, and activ-
ities. In the United States, the child is anoth-
er member of the family who may have little
or no priority in the family's plans, with the
exception of scheduling activities.

Education

German schools offer classroom learning
only—no activities, sports, or socializing. In
the United States, school consists of learn-
ing, socializing clubs and activities, band,
chorus, sports, and physical education.

In Germany, a student must decide his
career by the fifth grade, age 10. The choice
are Hauptschule for grades 5 through 10,
with 6 hours of school per day; or
Realschule for grades 5 through 11, for 8
hours per day; or Gymnasium for grades 5
through 14, with 9 hours of school per day.
Gymnasium is equivalent to American high
school and a bachelor's college program.
Grades, testing, and the type of employment
sought will determine whether a student
attends a Hauptschule or Realschule or
Gymnasium.

In the United States, a student will attend
grades 1 through 12 before making a career
track choice. In high school, one of three
tracks is often followed: Business, college
preparatory, or general. After graduating
from high school, a student may pursue a
trade school or college program. If a student
enrolls in college, he may pursue a general
program until the third year of college.

Drinking Habits

Germans and American differ in their
tastes and preferences for beverages. The
legal age to drink alcohol is also quite differ-
ent. In Germany, for example a child may be
served alcohol at any age if accompanied by
parents and may purchase alcohol alone
from age 15. In the U.S., the legal age to pur-
chase or be served alcohol is 21 in most
states, although military personnel and
dependents are able to consume and pur-
chase alcohol when 18 years of age and liv-
ing outside of the U.S.

German families allow consumption of
beer and wine at a much earlier age than in
the U.S. For example, German children, age
10 or older, are usually allowed to have beer
or wine while dining. In American families,
this same practice is usually reserved for
children aged 15 or older. Beer is the num-
ber one beverage of choice in Germany.

Entertainment

Videos, television, and music for German
youth are regulated by the German govern-
ment. For example, England broadcasts a
version of MTV, which has reduced violence
and selected language. Approximately 15
percent of U.S. programming is banned for
German youth, due to objectionable content.
In the U.S., however, there is no government
regulation of the media for children.

In conclusion, when an employee enters
the work force, the cultural influence since
birth will have had a tremendous impact on
the employee's behavior. When dealing with
international employees, it is always wise to
learn what cultural experiences have shaped
their behavior. I hope this information about
Germany will help in that endeavor.

Carol M. Schubeck is past president of
the EAPA Orange County Chapter in
California and is currently employed by
SA/C as an adolescent substance abuse
counselor. Renee Weitz is coordinator of
Family Advocacy, Foster Care, and
Exceptional Family Member Program for the
U.S. Army in Bad Kreuznach, Germany. 1`~
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ON THE LABOR FRONT

Why Pay Attention to Labor Issues?
by George Maltezos, MA, CEAP, and Dawn Zumstein-Marie, LCSW, CSADC

The Labor Committee of the EAPA
Northern Illinois Chapter was formed
in April 1994 to represent the views

of organized labor. The purposes of this arti-
cle are to introduce the Committee to EAPA
members and to announce a new era of
proactive participation by the Committee.
Following several months of discussion, the
Labor Committee brochure was put in final
form and is reprinted, in part, below.

OVERVIEW

Over the years, labor unions have played
a major role in social reform. For example,
in the early 1960s, District 141 of the
Machinist Union, with a grant from the state
of California, trained a number of unions in
California to establish alcohol programs.
Out of such beginnings grew EAPs as we
know them today...

Labor's ability to negotiate wages and
benefits has made possible many of the
mental health and substance abuse treat-
ment options union and non-union workers
enjoy today....When unions negotiate bene-
fits for their members, non-union employees
reap the same benefits....

Labor unions continue a proactive
approach. The George Meany Center for
Labor Studies, in cooperation with the AFL-
CIO Department of Community Services,
has established a National Substance Abuse
Institute. The Institute will serve as a clear-
inghouse to provide information, technical
assistance, and training about substance
abuse intervention to union leaders as well
as union members and their families.

Certainly some non-union people who
work for a living have the benefits of good
wages, adequate healthcare plans that
include adequate coverage for mental/ner-
vous conditions and substance abuse, pen-
sions, paid sick leave, paid holidays, paid
vacations, severance pay, and maternity
leave. However, these and other benefits
were not freely given by employers but were
won primarily through the hard-fought
efforts of the labor unions through collective
bargaining.

Repeal of prevailing wage laws, perma-
nent replacement workers, and "right to

work" laws are examples of proposed legis-
lation currently in the works that, if success-
ful, will put hard-won improvements in
wages and health and welfare benefits at risk
of being eliminated. We need to be aware of
the potential severity of the negative impact
that repealing laws, which support orga-
nized labor, will have on the availability of
health and welfare benefits for workers and
their families.

All union and non-union workers alike
may suffer the consequences of reduced
income and health and welfare benefits if
the current wave of anti-union legislation is
allowed to continue without the scrutinies of
an informed public. The Labor Committee
will be providing EAPA with information
concerning legislative issues currently facing
labor unions. These issues would adversely
impact available funds for mental health
and substance abuse treatment.

The attempt to repeal the Davis-Bacon
prevailing wage law is one example of the
current trend by Congress to undo legisla-
tion that protects the rights of workers. The
act, signed into law in 1933, requires that
workers on federally funded construction
projects be paid the local prevailing wage.

In March, the Republican leadership in the
Workers Protection Subcommittee of the
House Economic and Educational
Opportunities Committee refused to allow the
Secretary of Labor to testify at the only hearing
the subcommittee held on H.R. 500, the bill to
repeal the Davis-Bacon Act. The bill was
rushed into what is called a "mark-up," where
a vote was to be taken on the measure.

Subcommittee member Major Owens
(D-NY) complained, "I used to take pride in
being a member of this subcommittee
because of the deliberative way we
approached the business of legislating.
Every voice was allowed to be heard. But no
longer. After just one hearing, this subcom-
mittee is now poised to dismantle 60 years
of wage protections for the American work-
er." He continued, "...Congress should be
focused on honoring and supporting the
work ethic we claim to revere by making
work pay so that every American is able to
work at a job that pays a living wage. Instead,
we are here today making work pay less."

Repeal of the Davis-Bacon Act will not
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MISSION STATEMENT

The mission of the Labor Committee is to:

• Advocate for the best interests of

organized labor within the Employee

Assistance Professionals Association;

• Foster cooperation between labor and

management; and

• Provide information on labor issues to

management and treatment providers.

PHILOSOPHY STATEMENT

We, the Labor Committee, believe that alco-

holism, substance abuse, and mental illness

are treatable diseases, and benefit coverage

needs to be made available for treatment.

In addition, resources need to be made

available in order to empower and motivate the

employee to make appropriate decisions to

obtain necessary treatment. Further, we believe

that employees may achieve and maintain a

more productive and healthy lifestyle through

the promotion of health and wellness programs.

Labor and management must work in a

cooperative effort to achieve these objectives.

only reduce wage levels, but will also result
in significant reductions in health and wel-
fare benefits or eliminate benefits altogether.
The workers and their families would be
without funds to provide for medical care or
treatment for rriental/nervous conditions or
chemical abuse. This is a dangerous trend
that merits the attention of healthcare ser-
vice providers.

The Labor Committee of the EAPA
Northern Illinois Chapter appreciates the
opportunity to provide information on labor
and employee assistance program issues.
The Labor Committee will welcome any
opportunity to provide employee assistance
professionals or management with informa-
tion regarding labor issues. For information,
please call Dawn Zumstein-Marie at
AFSCME, Personnel Support Program, 312-
629-1550. ►~



CONFERENCES &WORKSHOPS

EACC-Approved Conferences and
Workshops

EAPA North Florida Chapter
November 17 in Jacksonville, "Treatment
of Worl<-Related Trauma EMDR: Eye
Movement Desensitizing Reprocessing,"
1 hr. Contact Sharon Elliott,
904-720-1612.

Hyland Training Institute/St. Anthony's
Medical Center
November 17 in St. Louis, "Antisocial
Personality and Behavior," 5 hrs.
Contact Gwyn Harvey, 314-525-7200,
ext. 7212.

EAPA Orange County Chapter
November 17 in Orange, "Elder
Addiction in the Workplace: Intervention
Strategies for EAPs," 1 hr. Contact Marcus
Dayhoff, 1-800-273-5273.

EAPA Virginia Blue Ridge Chapter
November 30 in Roanoke, "EAP
Legislation in Virginia and the Nation,"
1 hr. Call 1-800-388-4180.

The Mediplex Group
November 30 in New York City,
"Personality Disorders and Addiction,"
3 hrs.; December 14 in New Yorl< City,
"Gender Issues," 3 hrs. Contact Joel
Bradley, 212-399-6900.

High Point Treatment Center
December 1 in Plymouth, "Mental
Health Services in a Managed Care
Environment: The Shifting Paradigm,"
3 hrs. Contact Robert Nutt,
1-800-233-4478.

Charter Medical Corporation
December 6-9 in Atlanta, 24 workshops
approved for 1 credit each.
Contact Pat Fields, 404-814-5859.

Work Trauma Services and Holtzmann,
Wise &Shepard
December 6 in Palo Alto, "Domestic
Violence: Impact on the Workplace," 7 hrs.
Contact Kathleen Handron, 415-243-9822

York Health System Education Series
December 8 in Yorl< Hospital Education
Building, "Mood Disorders in Children,"
2 hrs. Contact Corol Stowell,
717-851-4142.

EAPA Delaware Valley Chapter
December 12 in Fort Washington, PA,
"Perspectives in Workplace Conflict,"
2 hrs. Contact Jim Nestor, 609-882-2000.

PALM (Problems of Addiction in Labor &
Management) December 15 in San
Fernando Valley, "EAP: Labor and
Management Working Together," 2.5 hrs.
Contact Douglas Maguire, 213-738-8864

Continuing Medical Education Programs
December 15 in Farmington, CT,
"Readiness and Change in Couples
Therapy: Steps for Effective and Brief
Treatment," 5.5 hrs; January 26 in
Farmington, CT, "The Power of the Mind
to Heal: Integrating Medicine,
Psychology, and Spirituality," 5.5 hrs.
Contact Dorothy Kagan, 203-679-3789.

Human Skills Training Counseling Center
November 18 in Shreveport,
"Understanding Sexual Harassment in the
Workplace," 2 hrs.; December 16 in
Shreveport, LA, "Constructive
Confrontation," 2 hrs.; January 20 in
Shreveport, "Policy and Procedures
Development," 2 hrs. Contact Karen
I<ersten or Will Jones, 318-868-8717.

EAPA Western New England Chapter
January 10 in Springfield, "EAPs, BATS,
SAPS, and MROs: Understanding Their
Roles," 1 hr. Contact Marge Babl<iewicz,
413-784-4354.

EAPA Youngstown Chapter
January 12 in Youngstown, "Cognitive
Therapy and Self-Esteem," 1.5 hrs.
Contact Betsy Williams, 216-332-7266.

Other Conferences and Workshops

The Institute for Behavioral
Healthcare/ CentraLink
December 7-8 in McLean, VA,
"How to Acquire and Administer Managed
Behavioral Healthcare Services," December
7-B in Palm Springs, CA or January 25-26
in McLean, VA, "Behavioral Healthcare
Delivery System Integration," December 7-
8 in Phoenix, AZ, "Disease Management in
Behavioral Healthcare," January 10-12 in
San Francisco, "The Public/Private
Behavioral Healthcare Summit," January
18-20 in Anaheim, "Behavioral Healthcare
Outcomes Management SI<ills."
For further information,
call Nicole Mathios, 415-435-9801. 1d

l 996 Del Disorder
Conferences

San Diego, CA Feb.1-9
Orlando, FL March 13-15
Baltimore, MD May 1-3
Westchester, NY June 5-1
Los Angeles, CA Aug. 7- 4

Terence Gorski, lames 6arbarino, Ph.D.,
Susan Forward, Ph. D,,1. C. Nuckols, Ph. D.,
Arthur freeman, Ed.D. and many others.

Special focus on: Depression, Borderline
&Antisocial Personality, Trauma, Family

& Domestic Violence.

For information/free brochure
1.800.851.9100

lorrie Hoyt

has EAPA endorsed the tape and
workbook program

"Wealth On Any income"7
Because it was created by Rennie
Gabriell Yes, Rennie's a UCLA
Instructor and Certified Financial
Planner with over 23 years of
experience who also knows the
issues facing EAPs based on his
serving local and national EAP com-
mittees. For both EAPs and clients,
you can learn io: ̀ Feel rich on any
income, even if you're in debt.
"Live within your income within 90
days, guaranteed. "Save more than
10% of your income each month.
'Handle emergency spending
without financial disaster. •Get out
of debt, and stay out of debt. "Set
financial goals, create the action
steps to achieve them, and create
financial independence.

To order, Call (800) 940-2622
Or, send S49 plus S4 S&H to:

Rennie Gabriel
6189 Gaviota Ave.

Encino, CA 91436-1428
CA residents add 54.04 sales tax.
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CERTIFICATION UPDATE

How to Recertify: By Exam or PDHs?
by Joni Reed Cooley, Director of Certification

f you are a certified employee assistance
professional (CEAP), you have a choice
to make regarding how you would pre-

fer to recertify: By exam or by earning pro-
fessional development hours (PDHs). The
EACC has provided a variety of ways CEAPs
may earn PDHs; another option allows a
CEAP to take the CEAP examination again
since the exam itself is different each time.
Here are answers to the most commonly
asked questions about recertification. (All
contacts listed are EAPA Headquarters
employees; to contact them, call 703-522-
6272.)

Recertification by PDHs

Some training sessions I attended did not
award pre-approved PDHs, but the topics
were EAP-related. How can I receive
PDHs? Do I pay a fee for each training
session?

A CEAP may submit the training for post_
approval of PDHs. Post-approval forms are
available through EAPA (contact Gwen at
703-522-6272). With your post-approval
application form, you will submit for each
session a "block of training" form, which
will include a description of the training ses-
sion, agenda or outline, the presenter's qual-
ifications, and proof of attendance, such as a
certificate of completion.

The fee for post-approval of PDHs is $25
for EAPA members (and $50 for non-EAPA
members) for each rg out of post-approvals
submitted. (In other words, don't send them
separately, or you will need to pay the fee
each time.)

took a college course in an EAP-related
field, and 1 completed a correspondence
course through a private training firm.
Could these earn post-approval PDHs?

Two PDHs can be awarded for each
credit hour earned in an EAP-related college
or university course. This formula also
applies for the first time a CEAP teaches a
course. These PDHs must be awarded
through the post-approval process, and an
official transcript and class syllabus/outline
must accompany the post-approval applica-
tion.

At present, the EACC does not award
PDHs for correspondence courses or videos,
except for EAPA's Self-Study Guides, which
are acceptable.

1 may be a few PDHs short of my require-
ment to recertify. What can I do?

If you will not be able to earn enough
PDHs by attending training sessions, you
may want to consider EAPA's Self-Study
Guides. Self-Study Guides are available for
$15 each in al I of the content areas, and you
may earn five PDHs for each Self-Study
Guide you complete. You may also earn
PDHs by developing sample multiple
choice questions for the CEAP exam from
the Self-Study Guides. (For more informa-
tion, contact Ashley Harris at the EAPA
Resource Center.)

What is the PDH Summary Log that I need
to submit for my recertification?

The log sheet lists and summarizes
your group of PDHs, including the
approval numbers, number of PDHs
awarded in the content areas, and dates of
training. This summary is critical in order
for EAPA to review your PDHs submitted,
and a simple log sheet has been devel-
oped for your convenience. (To request a
copy, contact Gwen Garrity.)

If you already keep a log of this infor-
mation on your computer and would like
to submit that instead, however, this is
fine, too. Keep in mind that your recertifi-
cation materials will be returned if a com-
pleted summary log sheet is not submitted
with your packet.

Is there a fee for recertification?

No, not for recertification itself. Fees
are charged, however, for post-approvals,
Self-Study Guides, and the CEAP exam.
(And remember that your CEAP mainte-
nance fees must be paid in full in order to
recertify.)

Recertification by Examination

want to recertify in 1996 by taking the
CEAP exam. How do 1 apply?
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Call Professional Testing Corporation

(PTC) [212-852-0400] or EAPA [703-522-

6272] for a CEAP examination application

and handbook, which provides detailed
information. Submit the completed appli-
cation and fee to PTC (not EAPA); the
envelope must be postmarked by March
15, 1996 for the May 11, 1996 exam; or
postmarked by October 11, 1996 for the
December 7; 1996 exam. Please note:
Incomplete applications will be returned.

What is the refund/transfer policy for the
CEAP examination?

An application for the CEAP examina-
tion is a commitment to take the exam;
refunds are not provided (unless it is deter-
mined that you do not meet the eligibility
requirements for the exam), nor are trans-
fers of fees allowed.

My company is an organizational mem-
ber of EAPA. Do I pay the examination
fee for EAPA members or non-members?

The organization membership covers
individual membership only for the per-
son designated as the contact. Otherwise,
you are considered anon-EAPA member
and would pay the non-member examina-
tion fee of $350 rather than $250. (P.S.
You can join EAPA for $115. Contact
Juanita Padgett for details.)

My CEAP certification has expired; how
can 1 recertify?

Because you have let your certification
expire, you would not be eligible to recer-
tify, but you may regain your certified sta-
tus by successfully completing the CEAP
exam. The PDH option is available only to
current CEAPs; thus, you would have to
apply to take the regularly scheduled
CEAP exam and follow the regular appli-
cation procedure.

For more information about recertifying,
refer to your Recertification Guide, which
explains the two options and procedures,
or contact-the Certification Department at
EAPA (703-522-6272). 1~



PUBLIC POLICY

EA Professional Licensure at a Crossroads
by Sheila Macdonald, Director of Legislation and Public Policy

ne year ago, the EAPA Exchange
carried an article on the status of
employee assistance (EA) profes-

sional licensure legislation and laws in the
states. In the intervening 12 months, a num-
ber of significant events have occurred to
move the issue along in the public policy
arena. The purpose of this column is to pro-
vide asummary of those events and to lay-
out for the membership some of the hurdles
that lie ahead.

Background

In December 1993, the White House
Commission on Model State Drug Laws,
released 42 model acts for use by state leg-
islators interested in passing laws to stop ille-
gal drug use. Among them was the 1993
White House Model EA Professionals Act,
EAPA members helped draft this proposal,
which provides for state licensure of EA pro-
fessionalsbased on the Employee Assistance
Certification Commission's (EACC) certifica-
tion criteria. The EAPA Board supports, in
general, the concepts contained in this
model.

However, as EAPA members began pur-
suing EA professional licensure in the states,
they soon discovered that legislators, familiar
with degree requirements for other licensed
professionals, expected a similar require-
ment for EA professional licensure as well,
(Currently, the EACC criteria for certification
includes three-years (or 3000 hours) of veri-
fied experience in a worksite-related EA pro-
gram, and passage of an EACC exam; it does
not include education or degree require-
ments.) When legislators minds could not be
changed, several EAPA members, proposed
an amendmentto the White House model to
bypass this roadblock. Their intent was (a) to
protect EA professionals who had experience
but not degrees and (b) to meet legislators'
demands for traditional degree requirements.
The concept proposed was for tiering in the
CEAP credential.

EACC Addresses Issues

The amendment was discussed by the
membership and it soon became clear there
was no consensus on this approach, partic-

~'1~'.

ularly in the labor sector. The Board recog-
nized that the issue needed a full airing.
Arrangements were made to hold two
forums (labor and EACC) on the subject at
the 1994 Annual Conference; the Legislative
& Public Policy (L&PP) Committee
addressed the issue three times and it was
brought before the Board. In all venues there
was strong opposition to the tiering concept
and to a mandatory requirement fora mas-
ter's degree as part of the CEAP credential.

With the debate in mind, the L&PP
Committee, with labor representatives from
the Board offering advice, was inspired to
write a revised amendment that asked the
EACC to review the CEAP criteria, and they
recommended against using a tiering
option. The Board approved the L&PP
Committee's interim language and the
EACC was charged with studying the mat-
terand making a recommendation within a
year.

Over the next eight months, the EACC
focused on education requirements and the
CEAP criteria. By July 1995, under the lead-
ership of Chair Walter Reichman, the EACC
issued revised criteria for certification. The
new plan calls for one CEAP credential;
however, as a breakthrough, it offered two
routes instead of one to achieving certifica-
tion. The first route, similar to the past,
requires applicants to have three years (or
3000 hours) of experience, CEAP supervi-
sion in the workplace, and an exam. The
second and new route requires applicants to
have two years (or 2000 hours) of CEAP-
supervised work experience, a master's
degree in a human resources-related field,
and an exam. The new certification process
is expected to go into effect in 1997.

After the new EACC criteria was pro-
posed, an informal poll, which indicated
that members were supportive, was taken. It
seemed that a new consensus had been
formed and, with that in mind, the L&PP
Committee is working on a revised EAPA
Model EA Professionals Licensure Act for
use by local chapters in the states.

The EAPA draft model is expected to
include language from the 1993 White
House Model and a Virginia proposal, when
finalized is expected to contain language for
(1) the establishment of a state licensure

board; (2) licensure requirements for EA pro-
fessionals; (3) licensure criteria based on
EACC criteria; (4) reference to the "core tech-
nologies" (which do not include counseling);
and, (5) a confidentiality provision.

The EAPA draft model in process is
intended to offer local chapters a guide to
basic language that should be a part of any
state EA professional licensure bill. At the
same time, the EAPA model will leave room
for variances to meet local political realities.
The profession has an interest in utilizing
this template language to assure that state
licensure laws contain the key language.
Without it, there will not be licensure reci-
procity between states and individuals, and
companies will be forced to meet varying
standards, registration, and fee require-
ments. EAPA is trying to avoid a situation
faced by other professional groups who lost
control of uniformity in their state licensing
process.

1995 Licensure Activity
in the States

Five states have been active in pursuing
EA professional licensure or related bills this
year: Louisiana, North Carolina, Virginia,
Minnesota, and Oklahoma.

LA: Louisiana Attorney General (AG)
Richard leyoub wanted to secure passage
of the White House Model EA
Professionals .Act as part of his anti-drug
campaign. To build support, the AG setup
a committee to study EA professional
licensure legislation. Appointed to the
committee were seven CEAPS and repre-
sentatives of the medical, counseling,
education, and business communities.
During committee meetings, it became
apparent that the committee could not
reach a consensus on scope or type of
licensing. At that point the AG decided to
postpone further consideration until
1997, giving groups time to consider the
issues and find a common meeting
ground.

In response to the delay, EAPA mem-
bers in Louisiana have called for an all-
day meeting on December 1, 1995, in
Baton Rouge, to review issues, language
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and strategy. All three state chapters —
Baton Rouge, Shreveport, and New
Orleans will attend —and EAPA's L&PP
Department and the AG's office will send
representatives. To begirt the meeting,
panelists will set forth the substantive and
political issues; participants will then
break up into discussion groups to try to
build a consensus on next steps.
NC: The EAPA North Carolina Chapter,
after drafting language and setting a strat-
egy to support introduction of a bill, was
successful in NC. The EAPA North
Carolina Chapter, after drafting language
and setting a strategy to support introduc-
tion of a bill, was successful in having an
EA professionals licensure bill, HB 779,
introduced in that state. The measure was
the subject of hearings, reported and
approved with only one negative vote in
the House by June 1995. Before the legis-
lature adjourned, HB 779 was sent to the
Senate Finance Committee to assure the
possibility that it could be brought up in
the short 1996 legislative session. The
Senate is expected to support the measure
and supporters are predicting passage by
next spring.

To become licensed under HB 779,
an EA professional would have to be a
CEAP and would have to have a mas-
ter's degree. The bill specifies that the
license designation does not cover
counseling. It also is not an exclusion-
ary bill and would not prevent other
professions or other unlicensed persons
from calling themselves EA profession-
als or saying that they provide EA pro-
gram services. In essence, the NC mea-
sure is a professional titling or registra-
tion bill. The requirements for licensure
in this bill go beyond established EACC
criteria for certification.
VA: The three chapters in Virginia — DC-
area, Richmond, and Blue Ridge —have
worked together to agree to licensure lan-
guage to take to the state legislature in
1996. The Virginia draft provides for both
EA professional and EA program licen-
sure, specifically: An EA professional to
be licensed must be EACC-certified
(licensed employee assistance profession-
al, orLEAP) and must provide EA program
"core technology" services; EA Programs
to be licensed must provide the "core
technologies;" a LEAP who provides
counseling over and beyond the "core
technologies" would have to have an
additiona► licensure applicable to coun-
seling professions in the state (this licen-
sure would include a master's degree);
and, a strong confidentiality provision.
The Virginia proposal, unlike profession-

Confidentiality Case Goes to the U.S. Supreme Court

The U.S. Supreme Court on Monday, October 16, said that it would hear a case that could have
an impact on the EA profession'and the confidentiality of its records. The case has to do with whether

or not conversations between a client (police officer, in this case), and a psychotherapist (clinical social
wo~i<er, in this case), are protected (privileged); if such client-therapist conversations are protected, as
communications between lawyers and clients and doctors and patients are, they, too, could be

excluded fror7~ any court proceedings. A lower court ruled that such communications are not privi-

le~ec~, thus holding against the client (the defendant, in this case) and in favor of the plaintiff.
The case was then taken to the. 7th Circuit Court of Appeals where the presiding judge ruled

against the lower court. His opinion stated that all states have recognized some need fora psy-
chotherepist-patient privilcc~e, that the psychotherapist privilege exists in the law, and that this privilege
should Include any "r7ient~l health care p~~oviders." A lawyerfor the original plaintiff is asking the Supreme
Court i~o resolve existing conflicts among federal courts on whether or not a psychotherapist privilege
exists; the lawyer also Is as4<ing the court to decide whether such privilege should extend broadly to any
"rnEnt~l health care provider."

The U.S. Sups eme Court Is expected to hear the case in early ~ 996 and issue its ruling in the late
spring or early swnmer. SPA is ~evi~wing what action might be appropriate to take on behalf of the
p~~ofession.

al titling bills, is exclusionary. It would
not allow individuals to identify them-
selves as EA professionals or EA programs
to be called such unless they were
licensed. To be noted, the Virginia pro-
posal is within the EACC criteria.
MN: EAPA members in this state are also
looking at introducing licensure legisla-
tion next year. After drafting their own
bill, Minnesota members are planning to
revise it to include the basic provisions of
the EAPA model and some of the Virginia
language. The intent is to base their mea-
sure on the EACC criteria and the "core
technologies."
OI<: On May 4, 1995, the Oklahoma
governor signed into law a Licensed
Professional Counselors Act. This law,
because of the broad definition of coun-
seling, which covers many aspects of an
EA program's "core technologies,"
requires licensure of those EA profes-
sionalswho are not salaried, that is, con-
tract and individual EA professionals. To
be licensed, one must have a master's
degree in acounseling-related profes-
sion. Company and union EA profes-
sionals would be exempt, as would
those hired by the government agencies.
The law goes into effect November 1,
1995. According to reports, Kansas and
New Jersey have enacted similar legisla-
tion. In other words, the profession is
confronted with defacto licensure under
these laws.

A Profession at a Crossroads

These brief sketches of state develop-
ments bring into focus licensure issues con-
fronting the profession. Promoting licensure
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bills that include the essential positions
offered in an EAPA draft model give the pro-
fession an opportunity to shape its future.
The L&PP Committee is working to bring a
template bill to the Board in Seattle. If you
are interested in following the debate, please
attend the committee's meeting on
November 10 and the Early Bird Session on
licensure set for Monday, .November 13,
7:30 a.m.

See you in Seattle and stay tuned.

Pacific Northwest Chapter Takes
Lead on Guidelines for SAP
Practice

This is an important year for the Pacific
Northwest Chapter (PNW) of EAPA. As the
host chapter for the 1995 EAPA Annual
Conference, PNW has been out front in
training its regional members on DOT
Alcohol and Drug Testing Rules, and now, in
another first, members of the PNW Chapter
have created a guide for those who are pro-
viding substance abuse professional (SAP)
services. This document is only a guideline,
but it provides insight to how professionals
are interpreting the rules and applying them
to real-life situations.

SAPS from the Chapter have agreed to
run a session of their SAP Support Group to
show how professionals, carrying out this
important DOT-mandated role, learn from
each other and discover better ways to con-
front the unending variables that present
themselves. This support group session will
tale place immediately after. the DOT
Wori<shop on November 11, 6:00 to 7:00
p.m. All those providing SAP services are
invited. Cdr



INFOTRACKS

Noted Alcoholism Leader Retires

EAPA member Riley W. Regan,
Executive Director of the Governors
Council on Alcoholism and Drug

Abuse, in New Jersey retired in May 1995
after a public service career spanning 28
years. According to a recent report from
the council, "For the past 19 years,
Regan, New Jersey's first and only direc-
tor of the New Jersey Health
Departments Division of Alcoholism, has
been on call 24 hours a day looking out
for his fellow alcoholics, from the drunks
in the street to those in the Statehouse.
When called upon, Regan h~~
done whatever was necessar
get people into treatment."

As he retired, Regan rece
accolades from national fig
who recognized him for his ex
tional contributions in comba
substance abuse. For exarr
Governor Christine Todd Whit
wrote, "You have been a pio
in New Jersey's efforts to adc
problems associated with
stance abuse." New Jersey
Health Commissioner Len Fi
that Regan "made all of us recognize that
alcoholism is a disease and that it is pre-
ventable and which, if left unchecked,

impacts negatively on the health and wel-
fare of us all."

During his career, Regan received the
Distinguished Public Service award, the high-
est honor bestowed by the U.S. DepartmQnt
of Health and Human Services (1988); the
Outstanding Service Award (1986) from the
National Governors' Association; two bronze
key awards from the National Council on
Alcoholism (1985 and 1988); and was select-
ed New Jersey Social Worker of the Year
(1988) and Council on Compulsive
Gambling Man of the Year (1987).

Pictured left to right are EAPA members:
Thomas Graham, Riley Regan, and Jack
Hennessy.

A Tribute to an EAP Pioneer and Friend
by Dale Tidwell, CEAP

On July 18, 1995, EA professionals in
Florida and other parts of the country lost a
valuable friends and ally. Robert (BoB)
Appleby exited this life on that day doing the
one thing he loved even better than his pro-
fession: playing with his grandchildren on the
Atlantic shore by his home near St. Augustine,
Florida. I knew Bob as both friend and pro-
fessional mentor. He took the initiative to con-
tact me when I moved from Atlanta to
Jacksonville in 1985 and personally escorted
me to my first meeting of the recently formed
EAPA North Florida Chapter (then known as
ALMACA). Bob was very busy then; he had
founded his own external EAP, Resource EAP,
Inc., and was a board member of the Florida

~` ~ ~'1'.

Occupational Programs Forum, in addition to
founding the EAPA North Florida Chapter as
well. He was also active on the board of the
Northeast Florida Council on Alcoholism and
Drug Abuse and served as a Big Brother.

Bob Appleby packed a lot of lining into his
58 years. Please remember his wife Phyllis
and the rest of Bob's family in your prayers
because they're still hurting. But don't worry
about Bob. A letter from Bob to his family and
friends was distributed at his funeral, and the
opening paragraph read: " I know that you are
hurting right now, but your pain will pass.
Remember where I am—in God's glorious
kingdom, and that we will have the ultimate
reunion one day."

See you there, Bob.

According to former EAPA President
Jack Hennessy, "Riley has been one of the
most dedicated people in the EAP field. In
the early years, he was instrumental in
obtaining federal funds for ALMACA and
was influential in developingthe EAPAcer-
tification process. He has been willing to
help at any time, and we owe him a debt
of gratitude."
..............................................................................

In Memory of
Bill Loving
(October 15,1933 -
September 20, 1995)
by Ron Winters, CEAP

On September 25, 1995, hundreds of
members of the treatment and recovery
community of Flint, Michigan came togeth-
er at a local church to commemorate the
life of William (Bill) C. Loving, III. At the
time of his death, Bill Loving was serving as
the EAPA Greater Flint, Michigan Chapter
President, as well as on the boards of sev-
eral nonprofit organizations, :and enjoyed a
position of admiration and respect in the
community.

Bill Loving was known for his beaming
smile, upbeat message, and his common
sense approach. During his 21 years of
recovery he touched an untold number of
lives through participation in 12-step recov-
ery and his work with numerous treatment
agencies. As one EAPA member put it,
"Everyone in this field has a Bill Loving
story to tell." He will be missed.

A memorial fund has been established in
his name. Contributions may be made to:

William C. Loving, III Memorial Fund
902 Woodside Drive
Flint, Michigan 48503

Membership
Information Updates

EAPA members:
Send your membership information

changes for the 1996 Member Resource
Directory to Juanita Padgett at EAPA
Headquarters by December 1, 1995,
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EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROFESSIONALS ASSOCIATt~N, INC.

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1995

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Directors
Employee Assistance Professionals Association, {nc.

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Employee Assistance Professionals
Association, inc. as of June 30, 1995, and the related statements of revenues and expenses, changes
in fund balance and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Association's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with genera{{y accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we p{an and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the fiinancial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, do a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overal{ financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Employee Assistance Professiona{s Association, Inc. as of June 30, 1995, and
the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with generally
accepted accau~ting principles.

Certified Public Accountants
Falls Church, Virginia

August 30, 1995

LMemDet
DivisionforCPAFirmsAICPA
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Members American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants



EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROFESSIONALS ASSOCIATION, INC.

BALANCE SHEET
June 30, 1995

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents -Note 2
Accounts receivable -Net of allowance
for doubtful accounts of $6,080
Prepaid expenses
Total Current Assets

Property and Equipment -Net of Accumulated
Depreciation of $124,797

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Chapter and district payable -Note 3
Accrued expenses
Deferred rent -Note 4
Deferred revenue -Note 5
Total Current Liabilities
Long-Term Liabilities
Deferred rent -Note 4
Deferred revenue -Note 5
Total Long-Term Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Fund Balance

Total Liabilities
and Fund Balance

$688,970

35,616
39,730

$764,316

40,002

$804,318

$100,227
11,297
35,807
2,213

465.793
$615,337

$ 16,784
71,179

$ 87,963
$ 703,300
101,018

$804,378

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES
For the Year Ended June 30, 1995

Revenues
Membership dues
Annual conference
Certification fees
Resource services
Educational services
Headquarters
Membership services
Public policy/legislative conference
Mailing lists
Investment income
Advertising income
Total Revenues

Expenses
Membership services
Annual conference
Certification
Exchange
Resource services
Educational services
Headquarters
Public policy/legislative conference
Committees
Board and Executive Committee
Regional representatives
Total Expenses

Excess of Revenues Over Expenses

$ 806,329
864, 244
259,439
80,603
57,480
53,627
33,754
30,242
51,728
21,033
6,525

$2,264,998

$ 216,253
456,143
200,645
27 5,476
59,653
35,042

457,096
111,383
40,900
28,292
15,022

$1,835,905

$ 429,093

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE

For the Year Ended June 30, 1995

Balance - Beginning of Year $(328,075)
Excess of revenues over expenses 429,093

Balance -End of Year $ 101,018

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended )une 30, 1995

Operating Activities
Excess of revenues over expenses
Adjustments to reconcile excess of
expenses over revenues to net cash
provided by operating activities
Depreciation
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease)in chapter and
district payable
Increase (decrease)in accrued expenses
Increase (decrease) in deferred rent
Increase (decrease)in deferred revenue
Net Cash Provided (Used)
By Operating Activities

Investing Activities
Purchases of property and equipment
Net Cash Provided (Used)
By Investing Activities

Financing Activities
Payments on capital lease obligations
Net Cash Provided (Used)
By Financing Activities

Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of period

Cash and Cash Equivalents
at End of Period

$429,093

25,644

(8,485)
(27,67 7)

(116,072)

(38,396)
(12,534)
(2,213)
14 721)

$234,.699

$ 6 021)

$~)

$~)

$ 579)

$228,099

460,871

$ 688,970

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an
integral part of this statement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Employee Assistance Professionals Association, Inc. ("the Association")
was organized in 1972 in Wisconsin as a private non-profit organization. The
Association is an international organization of professionals who assist in the
identification and resolution of productivity problems associated with
employees and their families impaired by personal problems such as drug and
alcohol addiction, stress, emotional and other personal concerns which may
adversely affect employee job performance. Prior to June 30, 7989, the
Association was Known as The Association of Labor Management
Administrators and Consultants on Alcoholism, Incorporated (ALMACA).

The following is a summary of significant accounting policies followed
in the preparation of these financial statements:

(a). Cash and Cash Equivalents - Management generally considers sub-
stantially all highly liquid investments, excluding certificates of
deposit, with a maturity of three months or less at date of acquisi-
tion to be cash equivalents.

(b). Property and Equipment - Property and equipment are recorded at
cost, less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation expense is com-
puted using the straight-line method or accelerated methods over
the estimated useful lives of the respective assets. Expenditures for
maintenance and repairs are charged against income as incurred;
betterments which increase the value or materially extend the life
of the related assets are capitalized.

(c). Deferred Dues and Other Revenue - Membership dues and other
income are recognized as revenue in the period to which they
relate. Deferred dues represents collections before June 30, 1995
that will be used to fund operations for subsequent periods.

(d). Expense Allocation - Overhead expenses are allocated based on
salaries which are based on the functional classification of each
employee. (See Note 6.)

(e). Income Taxes -The Association is exempt from income taxes, other
than on unrelated business income, under Section 501(c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code.

NOTE 2 -Cash and Concentrations of Credit Risk

The Association has exposure to credit risk to the extent that its cash and
cash equivalents exceed amounts covered by federal deposit insurance. At
June 30, 1995, those uninsured amounts totalled $585,341. The Association
believes that its credit risk is not significant. However, management is taking
steps to reinvest uninsured funds into government backed securities via bank
repurchase agreements.

NOTE 3- Chapter and District Payable

The Association collects membership dues for state and local chapters and
remits these to the chapters on a monthly basis. As of June 30, 1995, a total
of $17,297 is due to state and local chapters.

NOTE 4 -Lease Commitments

Operating Lease -The Association is obligated under a lease agree-
ment to rent office space for a term of ten years beginning on January 15,
7994, and ending December 15, 2004. The lessor abated the first two
months of the term. Total rent payments are amortized over the term of the
lease agreement to compute the rent expense. Deferred rent as of June 30,
7995 was $1II,997. Rent expense for the year ended June 30, 1995 was
$130,936. The lease contains escalation provisions and additional charges
for increases including operating expenses.

At June 30, 7 995, the Association was obligated under terms of non-
cancellable leases for the following minimum lease payments:

1996 $ 148,208
1997 152,072
7 998 147,852
1999 150,047
2000 154,7 73
Thereafter 602,987

$ "1,355,279
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NOTE 5- Deferred Revenue
Deferred revenue consists of member dues, annual meeting fees,

directory revenue, and maintenance fees which are all subject to deferral
to the period in which these revenues are earned. Members' dues expire
annually and are due in advance. Annual meeting revenue is recognized
in the month of the conference. Revenue from the directory of Employee
Assistance consultants is recognized when the directory is published.

The cost of recertification through December 37, 7996 for members
who have been current on paying their annual maintenance fees is covered
by the Association. Management has estimated this cost based on the num-
ber of individuals due for recertification before that date and the estimated
cost of the recertificati<zn testing. These estimates may be over or under the
actual costs incurred due to the various factors such as the number of mem-
bers who actually recertify and remain current on their maintenance fees,
and the actual post to recertify. As of June 30, 1995, the deferred mainte-
nance fees were $27,700.

NOTE 6 - Overhead Expense Allocation
Overhead expenses which are allocated consist of the following:

Depreciation $ 25,644
Equipment/maintenance 22,636
Health insurance 51,902
Payroll taxes 38,797
Postage 29,715
Rent 130,936
Telephone 14,525
Total Overhead $314,155

The overhead allocation based on salaries is as follows:

Overhead Salary % Allocation

Annual conference $ 55,140 70.77 $ 33,826
Certification 64,747 12.64 39,719
Educational services 5,905 1.15 3,622
Exchange 48,414 9.45 29,700
Headquarters 170,428 33.29 704,550
Memberships 95,877 18.77 58,779
Public policy/legislative
conference 49,434 9.65 30,325
Resource services 22,225 4.34 73,634
Total $512,110 100.00 $314,155

NOTE 7 - Retirement Plan
The Association sponsors a defined contribution pension plan cover-

ing its eligible employees. The Association is contributing 7.5% of the
employees' monthly compensation. The employees become eligible under
the plan upon attaining twelve months of continuous service with the
Association. Pension expense for the year ended June 30, 1995 was $-0-,
as the Association received a credit for forfeitures. The Association has a
remaining credit balance of $14,073 to offset future costs.

Under the plan, an employee becomes twenty percent vested after more
than two years of service, increasing twenty percent each year to 100 percent
vesting after more than six years of service or attainment of age sixty-five.

NOTE 8 -Other Contingencies and Commitments
The Association was named in an EEOC claim filed by a previous

employee for discrimination. The employee may request (or the EEOC may
issue on its own initiative) a "right to sue" letter; which allows her to sue the
Association in Federal district court. In the event of an unfavorable finding, the
Association may be sued and, in the event of an unfavorable outcome, the
Association may be liable for back pay, front pay, compensatory, and punitive
damages. The Association believes the claim is completely without merit and
intends to vigorously defend its position. The Association has entered into an
employment contract with the chief operating officer which expires December
31, 1997. The contract specifies a minimum base salary with terms redeter-
mined annually by the Board of Directors. The contract also specifies that,, in
the event of termination, payments including benefits will continue for one
month for each year of service up to a total of five months.



The Complete What You Need to Know about
the DOT Alcohol and Drug Rules Series

Video I (42 minutes) -What You Need to
Know: Executive Briefing: Introduces
employers to their DOT-regulated responsi-
bilities through an interview with Donna
Smith, Ph.D., former Assistant Director of
the U.S. Department of Transportation,
under whose guidance the rules were
developed. Since the series was developed,
Dr. Smith, a leading expert on DOT regula-
tions, has left DOT to devote her time to
explaining the new regulations to corporate
audiences.

Additional materials:
• 56-page What You Need to Know:
DOT Alcohol and Drug Rules
Handbook for Employees

• Employer's Compliance Checklist

Cost of 3-piece package: $99.95

Video II (52 minutes) -What Supervisors
Need to Know about DOT Alcohol and
Drug Rules -Alcohol Supplement: The new
DOT regulations require a minimum of 60
minutes of alcohol training for all supervi-
sors of safety-sensitive employees. This
package meets all the education require-
ments. The video is divided into three parts:

(1) An overview of the rules by Donna
Smith, Ph.D.;

(2) Five action scenarios, based on types of
testing, to stimulate supervisor aware-
ness of what rules require;

(3) A presentation on the effects of low-level
alcohol use on job performance. (Many
EAPA members have said this presenta-
tion by Tamara Cagney is outstanding.)

Additional materials:
• 64-page Leader's Guide with sample

agreements and a certificate of partici-
pation.

• 56-page What You Need to Know:
DOT Alcohol and Drug Rules

Handbook for Employees

Cost of 3-piece package: $179.95

Video III (60 minutes) -What Supervisors
Need to Know: Information (a train-the-

trainer program): Highlights the most
important training elements required by
DOT for supervisors. Addresses general
substance abuse program information nec-
essary for an effective substance abuse pro-
gram. Explains how not enforcing a sub-
stance abuse policy jeopardizes the compa-
ny as well as public and employee safety.

Video IV (60 minutes) -What Supervisors
Need to Know: Application: Features in-
depth training on how to handle employees
who appear to be under the influence of
alcohol or any of the five prohibited drugs.
Re-creates 11 case scenarios explaining
exactly how, when, and why to confront
employees, using the four steps of construc-
tive confrontation. Most trainers select the
4-5 most appropriate scenarios to do their
training. (Some EAPA members have said
these case scenarios make this the most
valuable video in the series.)

Additional materials:
• 60-page Leader's Training Guide
• 96-page Supervisor Training Manual,

which includes a binder, sample poli-
cies, and a certificate of completion

• 56-page What You Need to Know:
DOT Alcohol and Drug Rules
Handbook for Employees

Cost of 5-piece package: $179

Video V (42 minutes) - What Safety-
Sensitive Employees and Drivers Need to
Know about the New DOT Testing Rules:
Covers the most commonly asked questions
about the alcohol and drug rules and
explains how to recognize alcohol and drug
abuse. Video has three parts:

(1) A brief review of DOT alcohol and drug
rules by Donna Smith, Ph.D.;
(2) An explanation of the impact of the new
alcohol testing rules in the workplace by
Tamara Cagney, LEAP;
(3) A presentation by safety expert Bruce
Wilkinson on the five prohibited drugs,
signs, and symptoms of drug abuse, and
why we need to keep our workplace drug
and alcohol free.

Additional materials:
• 10-page Instructor's Guide;
• 56-page What You Need to Know:
DOT Alcohol and Drug Rules
Handbook for Employees.

Cost of 3-piece package: $99.95

For more information, call EAPA,
703-522-6272. To order, contact
Buckley Productions, 415-383-
2009; (fax) 415-383-5031.



SUBSTANCE ABUSE PROFESSIONAL

VIDEO TRAINING PROGRAI~i

Program includes a video and self-paced workbook.

Some of the areas covered:
♦ SAP Qualifications
♦ DOT Regulations Affecting SAPs
♦ SAP Program Implementation Process
♦ Testing Protocols
♦ Employee Record Confidentiality
♦ Assessment, Referral, Return-to-Duty, &Follow-Up
♦ Risk Management/Loss Control Issues
♦ Marketing of Services: Internal/External

For more information, contact: BPI /Buckley Productions, Inc.

102 E Blithedale Ave Mill Valley, CA 94941 phone 415.383.2009 fax 415.383.5031

~~

•ASSOCIATION•

Employee Assistance Professionals Association
2101 Wilson Boulevard
Suite 500
Arlington, VA 22201
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